
 
OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY 

2940 LIMITED LANE NW 
OLYMPIA WA 98502 

 
AGENDA of June 14, 2023  *  10:00 a.m. 
Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

 

 
Be courteous – mute your mic if not speaking 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA (action item) 
(Ask for any corrections, additions/omissions) 
 

CHAIR REPORT 
 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT - Comments limited to three minutes per commenter 
 

CONSENT AGENDA (action item) 
 

1. Minutes of the Regular meeting, May 10, 2023 
2. Expenditures and Disbursements – May 5, 2023 – June 8, 2023 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

1. Finalize Executive Director’s 2023-2025 Performance Measures (action item) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 

1. FY2024 Budget (action item) 
 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. Compliance Manager Update - Robert Moody 
2. Engineering Manager Update – Mark Goodin 
3. Senior Air Monitoring Specialist Update – Odelle Hadley, Ph.D. 
4. Communications Manager Update – Dan Nelson 
5. Financial Services Manager Update – Lynn Harding 
6. Executive Director Update – Jeff Johnston, Ph.D. 

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION  
The Board will now meet in executive session for ___ minutes to discuss the __________ as allowed by RCW 42.30.XXX. The Board 
will be in executive session until _________ am/pm at which time the regular session will reconvene. The Board is/is not expected 
to take further action following the executive session. 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

NEXT MEETING – July 12, 2023 

ORCAA’s meeting are held at the above address, however they will also be available virtually via the 
information below. 
 
If you would like to participate in the meeting via Zoom video conference, visit 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88654004897?pwd=NklndCtlUEtPY25UTlFWbG96eXEyQT09 join with 
Meeting ID: 886 5400 4897 and Passcode: N5MiRD 
 
If you would like to participate in the meeting via Zoom audio only, call 1-253-215-8782 and join with 
Meeting ID: 88654004897 and Passcode: 78745 
  

http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/B2a-DraftBoardMinutesMay10-2023.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/B2a-DraftBoardMinutesMay10-2023.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/B2b-ExpendituresDisbursements.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/B2b-ExpendituresDisbursements.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/B3-FinalizeExecutiveDirectors2023-2025PerformanceMeasures.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/B4-FY2024Budget.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/B5-ComplianceManagerUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/B6-EngineeringManagerUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/B7-SeniorAirMonitoringSpecialistUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/B8-CommunicaitonsManagerUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/B9-FinancialServicesManagerUpdate.pdf
http://board.orcaa.org/2023/June14-2023/Board/BoardCommitteeAgendaPlanner.pdf
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88654004897?pwd=NklndCtlUEtPY25UTlFWbG96eXEyQT09


 

 

Page 1 of 4 

 OLYMPIC REGION CLEAN AIR AGENCY 
2940 Limited Lane NW 

Olympia, Washington 98502 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING – Hybrid via Zoom 
May 10, 2023 

 

A video recording of this meeting is available on the ORCAA YouTube channel at: 
https://www.youtube.com/@ORCAADan/videos 

 
Members present: Jim Cooper, City of Olympia (Chair) (via  Zoom) 
 Greg Brotherton, Jefferson County (Vice Chair) (via Zoom) 
 Joan Cathey, City of Tumwater (via  Zoom) 
 Jill Warne, Grays Harbor County (via Zoom) 

Randy Neatherlin, Mason County (via  Zoom) 
 Robin Vazquez, City of Lacey (via Zoom) 

Dave Tobin, Pacific County (via Zoom) 
Carolina Mejia, Thurston County (via Zoom) 
Mike French, Clallam County (via Zoom) 

 
Members absent:  
 
Legal Counsel: Jeff Myers and Michael Throgmorton, of Law, Lyman, Daniel, Kamerrer and 

Bogdanovich (via Zoom) 
 
Staff Present: Jeff Johnston, Ph.D., Executive Director; Robert Moody, Compliance Manager; 

Mark Goodin, Engineering Manager; Odelle Hadley, Ph.D., Senior Monitoring 
Specialist; Dan Nelson, Communications Manager; Lynn Harding, Financial 
Services Manager; Lauren Whybrew, Engineer; Rob Wyland, Air Quality 
Specialist; and Debbie Moody, Office Manager/Public Records Officer (all via 
Zoom) 

 
Brotherton called the meeting to order at 10 a.m.as Cooper was in transit so he would be chairing the 
meeting. 
 
Brotherton asked for approval of the agenda. Neatherlin moved approval, the motion was seconded 
and carried unanimously. 
 
Brotherton asked for a roll call of all in attendance. 
 
CHAIR REPORT 
 
Brotherton reminded everyone of the June meeting, requesting everyone do their best to make it in 
person. 
 
Cooper noted he and Johnston discussed cancelling the August meeting. Neatherlin moved approval 
of cancelling the August meeting. The motion was seconded and carried. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There were no public comments. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/@ORCAADan/videos


 

 

Page 2 of 4 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Brotherton asked approval of the Consent Agenda. Tobin moved approval of the Consent Agenda. 
The motion was seconded and carried unanimously. 

 
PRESENTATION 
 
Ozone 101 
 
Johnston gave a brief introduction. Hadley went over the slides and explained what ozone is, where it 
comes from, the health and environmental impacts of ozone, and how and where we measure ozone. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Draft FY2024 Budget 
 
Johnston briefly went over some of the improvements and accomplishments we have completed this 
current year and noted the proposed budget continues to make important investments for our agency. 
Johnston introduced the budget documents and asked Harding to present the budget. 
 
Harding went over the assumptions, highlights, and summary of the budget. Harding briefly noted the 
increase of 6.3% for fees and assessments, 4% increase in salaries, and the new salary schedule. 
 
Revenue and Expenditures are projected to be about 12% higher than 2023, coming in at $3.1 
million. Harding highlighted a few line items on the projected budget and the fund balance sheet and 
noted the list of building projects for the coming year. 
 
Brotherton noted there may be questions between now and the hearing and asked if people can 
contact staff directly. Johnston noted questions are encouraged. Johnston also noted some of the 
other clean air agency’s fee and salary increase percentages for comparison. 

 
DIRECTORS REPORT 
 
Compliance Manager Update 
 
R. Moody stated complaints, inspections, and land clearing burn permits have ramped up. ORCAA 
staff will be attending the Grays Harbor Home & Garden Show this weekend – we will be there 9-5 
Saturday and 9-4 on Sunday. OlyMAP met with several staff on May 1 and discussed the work they 
have been doing with regards to the Olympia area homeless camps that are part of the collaboration 
between ORCAA and OlyMAP.   
 
As an example of the kind of issues ORCAA responds to, R. Moody mentioned an area out off 93rd 
where there have been issues with a land clearing burn. There are three parties involved, 2 
households impacted by the smoke and the burner. Our inspector Rob Wyland was able to assist in 
mitigating the issues by working with all 3 parties. 
 
Engineering Manager Update 
 
Goodin highlighted the McKinley case noted it is further along than this month’s engineering report 
shows. We are working with them on the conditions of the Approval Order, which contain the 
enforceable conditions. We will continue working closely with McKinley in issuing the final permit. 
 



 

 

Page 3 of 4 

Senior Air Monitoring Specialist Update 
 
Hadley stated April shows all sites in the “good” category. We did lose some data in Lacey to a power 
outage, and because of the timing of the installation of some new equipment, we do not have a full 
month for Raymond. The Grays Harbor Saturation study continues, and even with the highest peaks, 
we continue to be in the “good” category for the 24-hour average. It was noted the study will be 
complete in July. 
 
The seasonal ozone monitor was installed in Lacey. Staff met with the Quinault air quality team. We 
have a signed contract with a firm for the CPO clean-up work and we plan on beginning that work on 
July 24. We are currently finalizing our Quality Management Plan with EPA, which is done every 5 
years 
 
Communications Manager Update 
 
Nelson noted last week was Air Quality Awareness Week and we saw quite a few views on social 
media, and specifically wanted to thank Clallam County for sharing the content. June 12-16 is Smoke 
Ready Week, and we will do another coordinated effort with agencies throughout the Pacific 
Northwest. 
 
Nelson stated we expect to see hotter and dryer weather, with precipitation later in the summer and 
moving into an El Niño year. The projections are to expect higher chances of wildfires in late summer 
and into the fall. 
 
Staff will be in Port Townsend next week for an event with the Port Townsend Health staff. We will 
discuss wildfire smoke preparedness.   
 
Nelson noted a representative from a local bank stopped by the ORCAA office requesting asbestos 
and demolition information to leave in their lobby for homeowners. 
 
The Woodstove Reduction Grant is wrapping up and we will be applying for a renewal of the grant for 
FY2024.  
 
Johnston noted, if anyone has any suggestions regarding our woodstove reduction program, 
considering the kind of products we offer rebates on, now would be a good time for input. Nelson 
added, we are trying to balance reduction of particulate matter with climate change – specifically we 
are reducing wood burning and incentivizing natural gas, while many communities are in the process 
of limiting and discouraging the use of natural gas appliances. Brotherton expressed his concern with 
the possibility of mandating installation of heat pumps and wondered if ORCAA should pay attention 
to this possibility. Johnston noted if these conversations will be taking place with your jurisdictions, 
and you would like ORCAA involved, contact us. 
 
Financial Services Manager Update 
 
Harding reminded the Board members who are traveling for the June meeting, and want to get 
reimbursed, to turn in their W-9 form.  
 
The ORCAA’s Wellness Committee (Aaron Manley, Tiffany Flores, and Lynn Harding) provides 
options to improve health. Harding noted we continue to encourage staff to get up and move. We 
currently have 84% of our staff participating in a walking challenge this month. The committee also 
encourages and promotes mental health awareness, providing a quite space in the wellness room, 
puzzling table, and puzzle books.  



 

 

Page 4 of 4 

 
Brotherton asked if the members will be staying after the June meeting for a socializing gathering. 
Johnston stated that was correct. 
 
Executive Director Update 
 
Johnston reminded the Board we have our budget hearing scheduled for the June meeting and we 
are thinking it will be over around 11:30 a.m. To be followed by a celebration with a short program 
from noon to 1:30 p.m. Johnston noted invitations should have been received and we are hoping we 
will be able to use our outdoor space, with some time for people to speak if they want, and then time 
to socialize with lunch provided. 
 
Johnston did note, while we discussed bringing back performance measures this month, due to 
workload he will be bringing the document to the June meeting for short discussion. 
 
The legislative session ended in April, and while there were a variety of things in play, there was 
nothing directly impacting our work. Johnston did mention a bill extending hog fuel tax exemptions 
through 2034, and we do have several sources that do take advantage of those tax breaks. 
 
Brother had mentioned the agenda planner earlier in the meeting, Johnston stated, and we want to 
encouraged people to look at it and to let staff know if there is anything that you’d ever like to add to 
the agenda. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Brotherton offered a funny for the day – Why did the air quality index break up with the pollution 
index? Because it was a toxic relationship. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (per RCW 42.30.110) 
 
There was no Executive Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Brotherton adjourned the meeting at 11:21 p.m. 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the meeting of the ORCAA Board of  
Directors held on May 10, 2023, in Olympia, Washington. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________  ________________________________ 
Jeff C. Johnston, Ph.D., Executive Director  Jim Cooper, Chair 
Olympic Region Clean Air Agency   ORCAA Board of Directors    
 
DATED: _______________________________ 



������ ��		��
���� �����������������
���
�� ���������
���� � � ��� �!"#$%$&'#$"( )'*�+ ��,-�+.����������������������/,,01/0�2��/,,01+� )'*��, ��34�4-��.�����������������/,,01+1�2��/,,01+� )'*��� �,30,,-,,.�����������������/,,01+4 )'*��� �,3+�1-�1.�����������������/,,01+0�2��/,,01�, )'*�1� �3+/+-�,.�������������������/,,01�� )'*�1� 13�+4-��.�������������������+40+,�2��+40�� )'*�2�5'*6"77 ��13�,,-�,.���������������� �!"#$%$&'#$"(8 )'*�2�9:(:%$#8 �+3�/0-/�.�����������������/,,01�1�2��/,,014� ;<(:�4 �031�+-+/.����������������=�
���>?@���A
�	��=�A���	A��� BCBDEEFGHHI�����������������������JA
��K����
��L�����M�	�N��
����O��	���M��A	��
�	�N��
A�LG�

PQRN��K�S>T�PU�KQ>�U���S��T>UKR10�,�V$W$#:X�V'(:�!Y3�Z7*W[$'�Y\��04+,12�+,/�O��	���@@	�]����M�>?@���A
�	�D��Â�	����
D������A	��=	��M�	_̀9)a  �b��Zc� d��5�caZbN���CD�BFBe�
�	��L��f����gD�BFBe

hijiklkmno�pqrstuv



������� �	
� �	��� �	��������
 �����
���������������� ���� ! "#$�%��&&' () )) (()*+�,���������������������-!)). !. ��()� ! /�001�'�/2&����3�4&15��&'6�77/ () )) 8.)*))�����������������������-!)). 9) ��()� ! /"#:��;��* () ))  6())*))��������������������-!)). 9( ��()� ! #&<�1�=&���������2�3> () )) ..+*)8�����������������������-!)). 9 ��()� ! ��?@1�'�A�'B��3��� () ))  �)*))�����������������������-!)). 9! ��()� ! 7�C6�7>=��6�#���&26 () )) !68.(*(9��������������������-!)). 99 ��()� ! 7��?&�D�'�E��F@�<=&��6�;��* () ))  !* 8�������������������������-!)). 9� ��()� ! G#$�H@'��&''�4�2@����'6�77/ () )) !))*9.�����������������������-!)). 9- ��()� ! $�������#�'<�'�2 () )) 8.*8)�������������������������-!)). 9+ ��()� ! $@3&��4�@�?���&13> () )) 8. *(+�����������������������-!)). 98 ��()� ! $I#�J(����/2�22�=�/�@��> () ))  �+*8������������������������-!)). 9. ��()� ! I*4*�H��K () )) !6�(.*..��������������������-!)). �) ��()� ! L&1�M���A�1&2&''6�H&22&5@& () )) 9(-*!+�����������������������-!)). �( ��()� ! N�K�=��:&3����/2&���"�1�"3&��> () )) (6 �)*))��������������������-!)). � ��((� ! "2<��&�#@��2&''6�77/ () )) !6-))*))��������������������-!)). �! ��((� ! /�<���2�/��>�4��5& () )) !6)))*))��������������������-!)). �9 ��((� ! /�<���2�O&����3�E�/��2��3�;��* () )) (68))*))��������������������-!)). �� ��((� ! /E/�/2&���4C&&< () )) (6�))*))��������������������-!)). �- ��((� ! #�1&&��4<�@2?��3 () )) �))*))�����������������������-!)). �+ ��((� ! 7�@1��L�2�3& () )) �))*))�����������������������-!)). �8 ��(+� ! 4�B�&��G2�5&1�"�?&1'�B () )) ()6�+ *+ ������������������-!)). �. �� -� ! /�<���2�H@'��&''�P��B��&'6�;��* () )) (� *8 �����������������������-!)). -) �� -� ! /�=��'��/�02&�/�=*6�;��* () )) !(�*(������������������������-!)). -( �� -� ! /�=<&�'������/���&�����'�77/ () )) !-)*))�����������������������-!)). - �� -� ! G?&22&�O�?2&> () ))  -*))�������������������������-!)). -! �� -� ! ;��&1=&?��*�&�6�;��* () ))  .)*--�����������������������-!)). -9 �� -� ! P�@������P�'��A��&1 () )) -�*-9�������������������������-!)). -� �� -� ! #�5�?��&2'�� () ))  9*.)�������������������������-!)). -- �� -� ! $I#�J(����/2�22�=�/�@��> () ))  9)*-8�����������������������-!)). -+ �� -� ! 4��&3@�1?�H@'��&''�4>'�&=' () )) 9.�*!������������������������-!)). -8 �� -� ! 4@�'&��"�1�;���1<�1��&? () )) 96!-.*)���������������������-!)). -. �� -� ! L&1�M���A�1&2&''6�H&22&5@& () )) !.*9��������������������������-!)). +) �� -� ! ����>�A��?�4�32�� () )) (�-*))�����������������������-!)). +( �� -� ! :*P*�N�@�3�/�=<��> () ))  6(�8*--��������������������+�8.�)%+�8.-+ ��!(� ! 4�2�1�&'�E�H&�&���' () )) (8+6+!.*9-����������������-!)). + -�8� ! /�001�'�/2&����3�4&15��&'6�77/ () )) 8.)*))�����������������������-!)). +! -�8� ! /��>����4B&2��� () ))  - *�)�����������������������-!)). +9 -�8� ! #&<�1�=&���������2�3> () )) (6(�)*�)��������������������-!)). +� -�8� ! ��'��4�3�' () )) -.9*8)�����������������������-!)). +- -�8� ! D1����@'6�77/ () )) +6(8(*.���������������������-!)). ++ -�8� ! 7�C6�7>=��6�#���&26 () )) 96(9!*�!��������������������-!)). +8 -�8� ! 7��?&�D�'�E��F@�<=&��6�;��* () ))   *-.�������������������������-!)). +. -�8� ! $�������#�'<�'�2 () )) 8.*8)�������������������������-!)). 8) -�8� ! $@3&��4�@�?���&13> () )) +(�*9+�����������������������-!)). 8( -�8� ! 4�@�?�$@02�'B��3�;��* () )) +!*9.�������������������������-!)). 8 -�8� ! 4@�1�'&�$&'��P���3&=&��6�;��* () )) 8-*9��������������������������-!)). 8! -�8� ! I*4*�H��K () )) !69++*!)��������������������-!)). 89 -�8� ! L&1�M���A�1&2&''6�H&22&5@& () )) 9 +*)����������������������������2  � 6(()*..,��������������

QRST�U��VWXUQY��RW�Y��UV��XWY�S .9)�7�=��&?�7��&��A6�G2>=<���A"��.8�) %-�)!������V�Z[
�\��]�Ŵ_��̀[
�\�a��[b�\����
a�	�̀�c[\��d\	�]�\efg�hi�jkjl�mnopqrn�sqtu�vi�jkjl

wxyxz{z|}~�������



1 
 

Olympic Region Clean Air Agency, Performance Measures for Jeff 

Johnston, Executive Director 
 

Period: Spring 2023 – Spring 2025 
 

In accordance with Jeff Johnston’s April 2023 employment contract with the ORCAA Board of Directors, 

Jeff developed the following performance measures in consultation with ORCAA staff and the Board for 

the period specified above.  

1. Agency succession planning and management – With more than 25% of the ORCAA 

Management Team eligible for retirement now or in the next few years, and the potential for 

turnover in other positions, succession planning is particularly important for a small agency like 

ORCAA.  While the coming retirements present a significant challenge to the agency because of 

the decades of knowledge and experience leaving ORCAA, these retirements also represent an 

opportunity for the agency to re-think how we’re organized to accomplish our mission, our core 

work, and rise to the challenge presented by new opportunities.  

Performance measure – Are the retirements being managed in a thoughtful way to ensure the 

agency is prepared and has retained the knowledge of retiring individuals, through mentoring of 

other staff and documentation.  Ensure that vacancies are filled in a way that best serves the 

short and long-term goals of the agency through promoting staff from within the agency or by 

hiring outstanding external personnel.  Through these staff transitions is the agency better 

positioned to take on existing and future challenges?  

2. Update ORCAA’s Strategic Plan – An updated agency strategic plan (and corresponding mission 

and vision) is important to help guide ORCAA’s work in the coming years, particularly during a 

period of significant staff transition.  To develop an agency strategic plan that guides our work 

(rather than sits on a shelf) the process will incorporate input from staff, the Board, and key 

partners and stakeholders.    

 

Performance measure – ORCAA has an updated strategic plan ready to implement with the start 

of the FY2026 (July 1, 2025) that will guide the agency in the coming years.  The strategic plan is 

developed and written in a way that each staff member can clearly see how their role 

contributes to the agency’s success.  The plan also facilitates the development of an agency 

workplan linking day-to-day activities with the broader strategic goals of the agency.   

 

3. Continue developing ORCAA’s performance management process – Building on the efforts 

during year one, continue refining the agency performance management and staff development 

process, ensuring strong linkage with the updated agency strategic plan described above.  This 

will involve further developing the agency Performance Development Plan (PDP) form and 

process, in addition to providing training for all agency managers on best practices for using the 

form to facilitate meaningful performance management and goal setting conversations with 

staff.    



2 
 

Performance measure – The PDP process is firmly established in ORCAA culture, and PDPs are 

completed annually for each staff (typically corresponding with their anniversary date). All 

managers have received training on the use of the agency PDP form.  The PDP form and process 

facilitates clear linkage between agency positions and the agency strategic plan. Managers and 

staff see value in the PDP process.   

 

4. Continue updating ORCAA’s IT infrastructure, including the agency’s databases – ORCAA will 

continue modernizing our IT infrastructure to address cyber security concerns while ensuring a 

strong, reliable, and accessible network that meets agency needs.   

 

ORCAA’s primary databases (core and timekeeping databases) are roughly 20 years old and 

need to be replaced.  A small team is currently working to define requirements, exploring 

options, sketching out likely project timelines, and costs.  The current timeline anticipates 

publishing an RFP for database development this fall and selecting a contractor/vendor for the 

initial project phase within the next 6 months.   

 

Performance measure – ORCAA’s IT network is robust and reliable, experiencing minimal 

downtime.  Staff are trained and diligent with respect to cybersecurity threats.  The agency is 

continuing to move to cloud-based systems with high reliability as appropriate, while 

maintaining agency control over our information and records.   

 

By spring 2025, ORCAA is well on the way towards implementing a new database.  Depending on 

how the project is structured and the timelines involved, phase one of the database project 

might or might not be operational.  There is a clear path to subsequent phases of database 

redevelopment, including replacing ORCAA’s timekeeping system and implementing an 

electronic content management (ECM) system.     

 

 

 



��

������	�
�������������������	������������������������������� � !""#$%�&!'(�)* �+,-../0�123435�6!78*'�#)7�#99&":#)�* �'�*�;&((&<�)8�6!78*'�7&9!"*)' =�>?*@*)!*A�BCDEFGHIJKEL�MFG�N::$&:$�#'�&) �;$&"�O&)'�)8*)9%�?* *$@* >1!)7�P#(#)9*>Q� '�&;�:(#))*7�6!�(7�)8�"#�)'*)#)9*�#)7�(*# *�&(7��":$&@*"*)' >ORQN�S�T*:*)7*)'�O&@*$#8*�O&)'$�6!'�&)��� '&$%>U$&:& *7�V*<�W#(#$%�W'*:�W'$!9'!$*>XKMYI�ZEE�[\]EGĴE>_̀abcdefbgahij�jklkjkmnk�ok/pk�qr0i�smnrtuku�+,-..�,k0irtvsim0�w3x5�#)7�w3xy�$*;*$$�)8�'&�'�*�:$&9*  �;&$�#7z! '�)8�;** �#)7�:*$>9#:�'#�#  *  "*)' �6# *7�&)�'�*�O&) !"*$�U$�9*�{)7*|�}OU{~�������������������������������� N::(%�)8�'�*�OU{�;&$�'�*�%*#$�*)7�)8�T*9*"6*$�3433�&;������'&�1**�U$&8$#" W'#;;�9&":(*'*7�#�<&$�(&#7�#)#(% � �;&$�#((�;**�:$&8$#" �}$*8� '$#'�&)��# 6* '& ��&!'7&&$6!$)�)8��)&'�9*�&;�9&) '$!9'�&)��)&'�9*�&;��)'*)'��#)7���'(*��~�9&) � '*)'�<�'��?* &(!'�&)�w3x5#::$&@*7�6%�'�*�P&#$7�:$&@�7�)8�;&$�#7z! '"*)' �'&�;**� 9�*7!(* � ��k��tu�kv�smnrtuk0����h��/0W'#;;�<�((�6$�)8�#�$*9&""*)7#'�&)�;&$�#�)*<�:& �'�&)�&;�1�)#)9*�N  � '#)'�'&�'�*�1�)#)9*O&""�''**�6%��#)!#$%�3435� N"6�*)'��&)�'&$�)8�#)7�R!'7&&$�P!$)�)8�:$&8$#" �$*(%�&)�1*7*$#(�W'#'*�OR?�� !::&$'� ��*�6!78*'�7$#< �&)��)$* *$@*7�1!)7�P#(#)9*�'&�6#(#)9*�'�*�6!78*'� O&)'�)!*�'&� *'�# �7*�;!)7 �;&$�6&#$7�#::$&@*7�9&)'�)8*)9%�#)7�9#:�'#(�;!)7 � R;;�9*�P!�(7�)8� �&)�'&$�)8���!�:"*)'� T#'#6# *���!�:"*)'� �#9#'�&)�W�9��Q*#@*� N  !"* ��44��&99!:#)9%��)�$*)'#(��)9&"*����������
��������� P!78*'�?*@*)!* �#$*�:$&z*9'*7�#'������"�((�&)��#6&!'��3����8�*$�'�#)�343��� �$#)'�$*@*)!* �$*:$* *)'�3����1** �#)7�N  *  "*)' ������U*)#('�* �y���?*)' ��� 9*((#)*&! 3���#)7�O&)'�)8*)9%�T$#<�x�� V&�"#z&$��)9$*# * �7*9$*# * �&;�&)>8&�)8�;!)7�)8��)�*|� '�)8�Q&9#(��W'#'*��#)7�1*7*$#(��$#)' �OR?���U�3�y��OUR���&&7 '&@*��7!9#'�&)��� ¡¢£¤¥¦§¦¡̈���&&7 "&�*�?*7!9'�&)���1W�O� �$#)' �#$*�"!('�>%*#$�9&)'$#9'�'*$" �$#)8�)8�;$&"�3>y�%*#$ � 1**�:$&8$#" ��)9(!7*�'�*������OU{



��

� ������	�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���� ���������������!������������������� �������������"�����������#�����$����"��%#������%�������������������������	�
����
����&'())*+�,,�-./01�+02134+����������%5�����$�������67889:;�<=�>?@ABCACD�� E����$��%#��������������F��������GH���F������"�� ��������������������H� I�$������%#���������"������������#��������
��%#�����"���#�������JJ�K����5#�$��������##����"�#������"��������L��
�������M�K�N�������5O���������������P#�����������K�Q������P#�������������R����F�!��S����������������#�$F����"�T�����$�P��������
���"�UIP��#���������V�F������������ WF#��F����������
�������X����$�X��#�X��������"�Y�����������
��F�ERU�TF#��$���N���
��������"���������� ��������
���QSX�#������������� ������� U���������������������U�F#���������U�����������
���ZS5E�5Z��������������
���[�GH"���� Z�������������������
����#���������������$�X���������I����������������
�G\"���� E��������������������� ��������������
�����5]0̂_]�-.̂_̀4_._34�0a�b_4c*�c4d+̂̀4����G�"�Y�� Z�������LX�
������#���������
��������������#��#��
������

"�������
������
����$ ���������$L�����L�������������� W�������������
��������
��������������
����������F�����������

�����#���"�����F��������G��"���� U������������������������EQI�
���#�$�����#�������������������������$�G�Y"���L$���� PSUEE�������������������%�� �5�����������������XEP����Q���F �������� U�������������
����TIE5�EF�������S������I�����ESI���������
�G�H�"Y��"������������F������������F�������������������"�
�����������##��������������H��������������5������������������U������������� ���������������#���������F����������������������#�������������F#����F��������U��!��I��!��UIP�����e���N�$� W���������F����������������F#����F������
��

���"� �������"�Z	EU"�������"��%�������#�������"�
����������#����F����� I���5�

��

���� �����������Q���F �������� Q���������������������������

�������I���
���U����$f<BghBiABj;�k�f9@hg9l�m7BnCD�U���������$���������#������� ������������������
������#���
���#��o���"�N������������������������p��"����L����F�����������������q���$��
�������������������F����� $��������!�"����������������������
$����"���F�����!���������r������������������$��UPST������5F�o���
�������"������F�����������"������������F������"�����������#������������� $�QSX"�����������F������������"����

���������������������
�����������"�������������P���s������������U���������$����5����������q�������������##��%�F����$�����F������
���F�����������������#����������������E�����q�����
���� ������������������"��������������������������
$��������!�"����������q���������������$������������#���������������
��������������t�����������������N����������� �������
�����$����
���#��#���������������� ���������������
����#���
����#��������#��#�������



��������	
�������
���	��
����	
�
��
���
��
��
����������������������
���� �! ���"#��$ ���"#��% ���"#��%� ���"#��& ���"#��'()*+,- ..��/���0"� �1 
�����
2 ���.���� 34567)*78	
�
��
 9:�;<;; ���%=%' 9:�;<;>?@ABCD EF&=G HI<<JK547L97874,- MNOP>>QR � MOOPSNNR ;M<P<<<R � MNSP<<<R � MNSP<<<RK547LT*,*7 MSNPNO>� MSQPH;U M><P<<<� MSUP<<<� MSUP<<<3V;I>�L�W)5-5XY�V5Z[*54[ZX� MSP><<� MSP><<� MSP><<� MSP><<� MSP><<K3\�34567)*�]̂W3(LV,[Z*7Z,Z)7�_�\̀74,*[5Za UQPUHO� OQP<UU� N>P<>N� N<PHQ;� N<PHQ;(b3�c4,Z*�][*d�W3( L� MSMP><< L� MSMP><<� Le558a*5f7�b78+)*[5Z�_�g5+Z*Y�345X4,h�]̂W)5-5XY >OP<MN� MU<P<<< MHOP<<U� MH<P<<<� MH<P<<<e558a*5f7�c4,Z* M<PQO;� M<PQO;� M<PQO;� M<PQO;� M<PQO;ijjD(aa7aah7Z*a HQHPS>SR � HNOPQNUR HNOPQNUR � >SSPUUMR � >>>PM;;R(ZZ+,-�b7X[a*4,*[5Z SU>PS<;� SOHP<<< SNMPSMH� HM<PNMM� H;UPSHUk[*-7�l�� Q<SPQMH� QOQPU>; QOQPU>;� QUOP;;;� QQQPNQSm\K�L�mTb MH<PHSS� MQSP<Q< Q>P><<� M<HPSUU� M<OP>>;m\n�L�V,654̂V[Z54 ;PNM;� MP<;;� SPQ>O� SP><<� SPQH<W9TWK ;QP<MN� SOPSO>� HHP;><� >UP;OS� >NP;>>W)5-5XY�\f74a[Xd* M;PNHO� M>P<<<� MSPMQ;� M>P><<� M>PU<<\+*8554�g+4Z[ZX L� L� L� L� L(ao7a*5a MSOPQSU� MS;POQ< MSHP<<<� MSNP<<<� MHHP>Q<p,Z8�K-7,4[ZX SQPQ>N� ;QPS<<� HHPM>U� HHP><<� HQP;O<qCrj@37Z,-*[7a�sm\lt ;MUP>><R � U>P<<<R ;<SPQQNR � MO>P<<<R � MN>P<<<RnZf7a*h7Z*�nZ*747a* MSPMHQ� M<P<<<� ;HPHUN� ;<P;>Q� MUP<<<V[a)7--,Z75+a�nZ)5h7 MPOO;� MP<<<� MPNN>� ;P;<<� ;PS<<g+[-8[ZX�nZ)5h7 >NPUNH� >NP>N;� HOPQUQ� HQPSQ;� HNPUHHk5*,-�b7f7Z+7�o7u547�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�v4,]sat ;P>N<PUSNR � ;PO;OP;>SR ;PUOUP>>UR�������������� ;PN>UP<;QR ;POUQPM<UR �(̀ 4̀5̀4[,*[5Z�u45h�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�9+Z8ac7Z74,-�9+Z8�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�v4,] LR � ;UHPNM>R M;NPQQHR � ;MQP>;;R � MO>P>>OR������	
�
��
����������
��� %wxy=wz&y{ � &w$=&w$E|{���������������� %wy$zw%%${�������������� &w$z&wx'|{ &w=E$wEEx{ �c7Z74,-�9+Z8�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�v4,] LR � ;UHPNM>R M;NPQQHR � ;MQP>;;R � MO>P>>ORk[*-7�l�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�g+[-8�_�c7Z74,-�9+Z8�b7[ho+4a7h7Z* S>PS;<R � M<NPHH>R N;PHN;R � HQP>;UR � M<P<<<R()*+,-�b7f7Z+7 ;P>N<PUSNR � ;PO;OP;>SR ;PUOUP>>UR�������������� ;PN>UP<;QR ;POUQPM<UR ��1"���
}.����� ;PHM;PNH<R � ;PO;OP;>SR ;PO;HPU;NR�������������� SPM;UP<;MR SP<>MPQQ>R �0���~����������1���������������� ��%=%& ��%=%' ��%=%x>UUPUSSR � QSMPQN>R � Q>QPNQSR �M<NP<MNR � MQP>;UR � LR �LR � S<P<<<R � M<P<<<R �QOQPU>;R � QUOP;;;R � QQQPNQSR ���������	
�������
���	��
����	
�
��
���
��
��
�� ���"#��$ ���"#��% ���"#��%� ���"#��& ���"#��'()*+,- ..��/���0"� �1 
�����
2 ���.���� 34567)*78
��
��
� 9:�;<;; ���%=%' 9:�;<;>�A�@q�� 'F==GT,-,4[7a MPQM;PMNOR � MPQN>PS<>R MPQQUPO>;R�������������� MPOSOP<SQR MPOQMPONUR �Wh̀ -5Y77�g7Z7u[*a HNNP;O;� >QQPHU> >SUPQ<<� Q<OP>;N� Q;<PU<<��D���C�������@�j������� ;PMMMPHO<R � ;P;QMPUO<R ;P;<>PH>;R�������������� ;PHHQP>Q>R ;PHO;P>NUR �BqB��A�@q���\uu[)7�T+̀ -̀[7âTh�T+̀ -̀[7âT,u7*Y OPHHOR � OPS<<R � M<P<<<R � ;MP>QUR � OP><<Rc,a5-[Z7�l7d[)-7a HPSNM� QP<<<� >PUSQ� QP;<<� QPH<<���������r����D�����D�������� L��Lc7Z74,-��e T̂e ;SP;<H� S<P<O>� SMP<<<� MSPQ>NR � MQP<<<Lc5f�( L� QP><<� QP>>N� QP>Q<� QPU<<L�Z5]g7HP�nZ)I L� L� L� ;PH<<� Lg5,48�5u�v[47)*54a�k4,f7-�b7[hoI L� MP;<<� L� L� LT*,uu�k4,[Z[ZXP�K5Zu747Z)7aP�k4,f7- >PQU>� MUPSN<� ;<PSSM� ;<POQO� ;;P<<<�������������D�������� L��Lp7X,-�s(**54Z7Yt HNP;NQ� ><P<<<� >SP;SQ� Q<P<<<� Q>P<<<L345)7aa�T74f[)7a L� HP><<� MPN<<� HP><<� HPU<<LT,-,4Y�T+4f7Ŷ(8L�5)�T+̀ 5̀4* L� >P<<<� MMP;<<� L� LL�b̂(8L�5)�T+̀ 5̀4* L� L� ;P<<<� SP><<� SP><<LT*4,*7X[)�3-,Z� ̀8,*7 L� OP<<<� L� OP<<<� Lk7-7̀d5Z7 M;PHO<� M>P><<� MHPQOH� MUP<<<� MUP><<v,*,o,a7 L� L� L� L� L35a*,X7 HPOSS� >P<<<� QP<QN� QP;<<� QP><<nZa+4,Z)7�sg-8XP�l7dP�T*,uut S>POU;� SOP<<<� SNP;QH� H<POS>� H;PHQOe7--Z7aa�345X4,h HSU� H><� ><< ><<� >;>�������j�������������q������¡� L��LW8+),*[5Z�_�\+*47,)d�s34[Z*[ZXP�à7)[,-�h,[-[ZXaP�7*)t OPOMQ� MMP>Q<� MOPON;� ;MPUN<� ;;P<<<Le7oa[*7�V,[Z*7Z,Z)7 L� ;>P<<<� SSPU><� ;P;><� ;P;><V[a)7--,Z75+a S<M� >><� HQN >><� >><v+7a�_�T+oa)4[̀*[5Za SPOH;� HPS<<� HPM<<� >PSS;� >PH<<(+8[*̂())*X QP>NN� MQP<<<� MUPM<<� ;P><<� MNP<<<����������� L� L� L� L� Lb7Z*LT,*7--[*7�\uu[)7 O<<� L� L� L� LV,[Z*7Z,Z)7�L�K5̀[74�̂�3+4)d,a7 M<PNHU� ;PH<<� ;PS;M� ;PH<<� ;P><<l7d[)-7�3+4)d,a7 L� ;QP<<<� S<P<<<� SMP<<<� SMP<<<V,[Z*7Z,Z)7�L�l7d[)-7a ;PSSS� SPN><� HPNQH� >P;<<� >P;<<��D���C�����A��������������j������� MUOP;UHR � ;O>PQO>R SMHP<U>R � ;O;POMMR � ;OUPQNSRqii¢�j�£�¤?��q�j@AC¢B?�nZ*747a*�W¥̀7Za7�_�34[Z)[̀,-�L�\uu[)7�g-8XI SS<R � HHP<<<R HSPNQHR � LR � LR *[-[*[7â(-,4h�V5Z[*54[ZX MOP<SO� MNP<<<� MNPQUH� MNP<<<� ;<P<<<¦,Z[*54[,-�T+̀ -̀[7a MMPQHS� MSP>QO� M;P;Q<� MHPMMM� MHPQU>V,[Z*7Z,Z)7�\uu[)7�g-8XI NP;;<� MOP;<<� SNPUMQ� MUP<><� M<P<<<p,Z8a),̀[ZX�T74f[)7a L� HP<<<� L� L� Lp7,a7d5-8�nh̀ 45f7h7Z*a L� ;SP<<<� ;MP<<<� >;P<<<� U>P<<<��D���C�����q������£������§�q�������§ SNP;SMR � M;MPUQOR MSQPQMHR � M<;PMQMR � MMNPQU>RBqB�A¤̈ ¢B¢DC@AC¢©j�q�j@AC¢B?e558ah5ª7�b78+)*[5Ẑb7)Y)-7�345X4,h HMP>><R � MSOP<<<R MM;P<<<R � M<>P<<<R � M<>P<<<R(b3�L�W3(�L�\̀74,*[5Z,- L� MSMP><< L� MSMP><<� LW)5-5XY�\f74a[Xd*�977a M;PNHO� M>P<<<� MSPMQS� M>P><<� M>PU<<V5Z[*54[ZX�345X4,h�L���� ;QPNQ<� SHP><<� SMP<<<� S>P<<<� S>P><<V5Z[*54[ZX�345X4,ha ;PMN;� >PHN<� QPU;H� QPHOH� >P><<\-YV(3�34567)* L� L� HP<<<� ;P<<<� LT7)+4[*Y�v7̀5a[*�b7u+Z8a S<>� L� MPU<M� L� L��D���C�����B���A����������������q�������§ OSPN>>R � S;HPHN<R MQOP>OOR � ;N>PHOHR � MQMPU<<R������
��
�2���	
� %w'$%wy'={ � %wyy&wz%&{���������������� %w|%'wz%y{�������������� &w$%zw=%${ &w=x$wEEx{ ���1��"�.�"��«2�����1¬����1���x $zzwzyy{ � «$Exw'z=¬{ � «&zw$z%¬{ � «$Eywyyx¬{ «$zxwxx|¬{ �0���~����������1��"�.�"��«2�����1¬� ���%=%% ���%=%' ���%=%x�m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�c7Z74,-�9+Z8�9:;<;; MH;PHUNR ��m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�c7Z74,-�9+Z8�9:;<;S s;UHPNM>tR � sM;NPQQHtR����������������m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�c7Z74,-�9+Z8�9:;<;H s;MQP>;;tR�m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�c7Z74,-�9+Z8�9:;<;> sMO>P>>OtR ��m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�k[*-7�l�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�9:;<;S�_�3,Yo,)ª S>PS;<R � M<NPHH>R N;PHN;R ��m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�k[*-7�l�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�9:;<;H�_�3,Yo,)ª HQP>;UR ��m7*�T+4̀-+a�sv7u[)[*t�*5�k[*-7�l�K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�9:;<;> M<P<<<R$zzwzyy{ � «$Exw'z=¬{ � «&zw$z%¬{ � «$Eywyyx¬{ «$zxwxx|¬{ �35̀+-,*[5Z >Q;PMU< >UUPQU>374�K,̀[*,�(aa7aah7Z* =F|%E =Fy%' =FyE$
}.�������}������ �$=G������®"� �1���1� ��̄�«��1����������"®���1� ��̄���	w������	w�0�� w��.���1�� ¬���°"�����®������..��/��Fx'%=%&

>I;<J

=F|Ey

2	��

���%=%&
>QUPNN;

2	�����%=%&

���%=%&

���9[a),-�:7,4�e54ª-5,8���b7̀,Yh7Z*�*5�c7Z74,-�9+Z8���K5Z*[ZX7Z)Y�9+Z8



��������	
�������
���	��
�������������������������������� !��!"�# 
$%&'(%)*+,-./ �011)2%�3045)% �1676$)4 89:;<+,<=>?@A�BC�DEDB >?@A�BC�DEDD FGHI�JK�LMLN >?@A�BC�DEDOPQRSTTSTR�UVWX�YZ[ZW\]̂ ^^_�_̂^^^^^^^^ àbcbadefg�� �� fahfdacèg�� �� àebeaìeg�� �� àb̀eaifcg�� �������jklm�n��opqpr?p�stuvw@�xpwy� z{|}~{��}��� �� z{���{||���� �� z{}|�{~z���� �� z{���{�~���� ���������mmn�����pr�t�?ypu�stuvw@�xpwy �z{��z{}�~���� �� �z{�z�{�z}���� �� ��{�z�{~z����� ��� ��{~|�{��|���� ������������������������� ��¡�¢¢£¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤¤�� fahfdacèg�� �� àebeaìeg�� �� àb̀eaifcg�� �� àdcia¥ddg�� ���)(1�
24�� d¦ih¦fhff d¦ih¦fhfi d¦ih¦fhfc d¦ih¦fhf§p̈rpyw@�s?r��©ªr�tr«prvA�¬yw�w��@tp���ª�sx�®?�«p�� gh̄hh f̀eaddcg�� �� f̀da§ffg�� �� b̀§a§§bg�� ��°±²³ ĺµ¶�P·k·µ̧�m�¹́ºm̧·k�»�·¼½Qµ¶¾¿ÀÁÂÃÃÄÅÄÆÂÇÄÈÉÃÊ ��ËÌµÍºµÎ�µ̧Ï�Ð�Ë·ÑºÍ·k�́lµ¶mÀÈÒÒÄÇÇÓÔ ��mm¿�����prup�©ªr�tr«prvA�ÕÖ×Ø�sx�®?�«p��@puu�Ùt�@p�Ú����uÛ ���{}z}��� �� ��|{�~���� �� ���{������ �� ���{z�|��� ��ÜÓÃÇÝÄÆÇÓÔ ��mm¿��Ùt�@p�Ú�©ªr�tr«prvA Þ<<�ß</:à Þ<<�ß</:à �~{~~~��� �� �~{~~~��� ��²ÃÃÄáÉÓÔ ��mm¿��Ùprwr�u�âpv?yt�A�¬p�ªut�u |{�~~��� �� �{�|~��� �� �{�|~��� �� �{�|~��� �����Ë·ÑºÍ·k�́lµ¶mÀÈÒÒÄÇÇÓÔ ��mm�ãªy�äããtvp�®?t@�tr« }~{~~~��� �� �z~{~~~��� �� �z~{~~~��� �� �z~{~~~��� ��ÀÈÒÒÄÇÇÓÔ ��mm�ãªy�åªrt�ªytr«��æ?t�çpr� z~{~~~��� �� z~{~~~��� �� z~{~~~��� �� z~{~~~��� ��ÀÈÒÒÄÇÇÓÔ ��mm�ãªy�¬w�wèwupé�æ?t�çpr� ��~{~~~��� �� z�|{~~~��� �� z|~{~~~��� �� z�|{~~~��� ��êÉÂÃÃÄáÉÓÔ ��mm�ãªy�Úwvw�tªréâtvë�ìpwqp� ���{�|���� �� �|~{~~~��� �� �z~{~~~��� �� �z~{~~~��� ��ËÌííºÍ�¶îï�mÍ¼º̧Í�¶îð�mºÎµ·Í�¶�́lµ¶m bhhaebfg�� �� e§cac§dg�� �� àhifa¥bbg�� �� àhd¥a§b§g�� ����ËÌµÍºµÎ�µ̧Ï�́lµ¶ñºÍk��ò�j¼ÌÎ¼·í�¹¶l��R�µ�¼·k�́lµ¶¾ ó̀heah̀eôg�� �� ó̀da§f¥ôg�� ��� õg�� �� õg�� ��öTðQ÷SRTøñQð�́lµ¶�P·k·µ̧� àiica§fbg�� �� àh§̀aiehg�� �� ¥bda§idg�� �� §¥dàb̀g�� ���<.9���= d¦ih¦fhff d¦ih¦fhfi d¦ih¦fhfc d¦ih¦fhf§�������	�
����������������£ ß./.�+<����~�zz ß./.�+<����~�z��äããtvp�®?t@�tr«C��yªçtuuªyA��ª�p��ª�èp��wt��BDéBéDEDD gciae§c gh��r�pypu��yw�p���E��C�rª��prw@�A�pwy@A��wAªãã��Ñ�¼·ÍºµÎ�ËÌµÍºµÎ�µ̧Ï�́lµ¶m���������£££££££ *��.�:-�,�<�,. /!�"<=� #� :.9=�=!9<+,!:��.�=�$/.+<=�!��9<�<9%<�Ë·ÑºÍ·k�́lµ¶m&��������££££££££¤�́lµ¶�P·k·µ̧����������£££££££££££¤¤ '())�%6%(*�+024�3(*(2,)�&2,*04)$�(**�-024$�62�4)76$&%�(%�%))�.(2/̄0î1îÖ×Ö2

3	+(»́�Ö×ÖÖ�R�µ�¼·k���́lµ¶ »́�Ö×Ö2�R�µ�¼·k�́lµ¶ »́�Ö×Ö0�R�µ�¼·k�́lµ¶

4<%!�<=�4<��5z�}�=.,<=�6.#�z~���à!,"�z~7�9<�<9%<�/<���8!,/<�9:��;:9�<9/#<�4<�:/-,!:��5����=.,<=�*-=-�,��}}}�9<><9��,:� :.9=�=!9<+,!:��,:��.!�,.!��.�z|7�9<�<9%<�/<%</�.��-.//#:�

?@ABACDEFGFHIJD?KGL

�*��.�:-�,�<�,. /!�"<=� #� :.9=�=!9<+,!:��,:��.%<�>:9�/:�=M,<9��+.$!,./�<N$<�=!,-9<��� /=={�<O-!$�<�,{�=.,. .�<�:����4<�:�5z|��=.,<=�~������zP�4<�:�5z�~�=.,<=�����z����Q;-�=��,".,�.9<�"</=�!��:-9� .�R�.++:-�,�à!,"�8"-9�,:��S:-�,#�89<.�-9<9T��U>>!+<:�U4S**�".��:�<�>-�=�à!,"�8"-9�,:��S:-�,#�.�=�!��9<><99<=�,:�.��,"<�VW<�<9./�;-�=V:



�����������	
������	�����������	�	��������	��������������� !"	#$!%	&'&(	�) "*+$�	,-$	./""/0�)1	2!�),$)!) $	!)+	"$!�$-/"+	�23%/4$2$),�5 6��������7$!�$-/"+5�8� 931%!+$	/"+$�,	:;<=	*)�,	�)	>,$	?@'@	!)+	?@'& &AB'''C								�8� D$0	>�+�)1	EF!�,	G!""B	>/*,-	0!""	 /23"$,$+	>$3,	&'@HI @'B'''										�8��� J!�),	$K,$%�/%	EL	0!""�B	�/*,-	0!""	 /23"$,$+	�)	>$3,	&'@HI @MB'''										 M&B'''C									N!�),$)!) $5� >*)%��$	J$�,	=/),%/"B	!))*!"	 /),%! , 	C									@B@''	� <�%	:!)+"$%�B	!))*!"	 /),%! ,	:;<=B	2!�),$)!) $	3!%,� (B'''												� 1%!4$"	3!%O�)1	"/,	 AM'															� 3!�),	�),$%�/%	0!""�	E /3�$%	%//2B	 /).$%$) $	%//2I (''															� $"$ ,%� !"B	3"*2P�)1B	�2!""	%$3"! $2$),�B	2�� $""!)$/*�	2!�),$)!) $	E+//%	 "/�$%�I &B&M'												�  "$!)	!)+	3!�),	$K,$%�/%	-!)+	%!�"�	E$!�,	��+$	�,!�%0$""B	0$�,	��+$	>,$	Q	$),%!) $I M''															� %//.	2!�),$)!) $	EN!R	S	>$3,$2P$%I TM'															� 0�)+/0	 "$!)�)1 (''															� %$3"! $	."//%�)1	�)	%$�,%//2�	E$�,U	(VW	."//%�I MBL''												� "!)+� !3$	2!�),$)!) $	E,//"�V3%$��*%$	0!�-$%B	."/0$%�B	1%/*+	 /4$%B	P!%OB	�*33"�$�I @BM''												 @AB'M'C									XYZ[\[]								\�̂�_[_̀



��������������	
	��	�����	���	��������	
���	���	��	������������  ��!"� #$%%$&'%( &)�*+,� -./0�1�2"���&'%3 3&34�������516/ %/7�58�/"�9�1��:�96�!": ;61:�%<�&'%(�=�;6>"�?'<�&'%3�������  ��!"� #$%'$&'%3 %@A)�*+,� -./0�1�2"���&'%# 3&34�������516/ &>��58�/"9�1��:�96�!": ;61:�%<�&'%3�=�;6>"�?'<�&'%#�������  ��!"� #$A$&'%# %@()�*+,� -./0�1�2"���&'%B 3&34�������516/ ?���58�/"9�1��:�96�!": ;61:�%<�&'%#�=�;6>"�?'<�&'%B�������  ��!"� 3$%'$&'%B %@B)�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'%A 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'%B�=�;6>"�?'<�&'%A�������  ��!"� #$%?$&'%A ?@')�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'%D 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'%A=�;6>"�?'<�&'%D�������  ��!"� #$%&$&'%D &@D)�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'&' 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'%D=�;6>"�?'<�&'&'�������  ��!"� 3$%?$&'&' %@3)�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'&% 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'&'=�;6>"�?'<�&'&%�������  ��!"� #$D$&'&% %@()�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'&& 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'&%=�;6>"�?'<�&'&&�������  ��!"� #$A$&'&& (@')�9�1���C -./0�1�2"���&'&? 3&34�������;61:�%<�&'&&=�;6>"�?'<�&'&?�������  ��!"� 5">�.>E -./0�1�2"���&'&( 3&34�������FG 1"G">7�9�1��:�96�!": ;61:�%<�&'&?=�;6>"�?'<�&'&(



����������	
������
������
����
�������������� ����
� ����
� ����
� ����
� ����
 ����
� ����
! ����
" ����
# ����
$ ����
% $&
�'�(���� 	)*	+ 	),-* 	)-�, 	)+./ *)/�� *)�.	 *)	0� *)*+* *).,0 *)+0* ,)//0 ������
�(��1)
��2'�'�����'3�
���'������0 	)-,. *)�/0 *)/,0 *)0/- *)	.- *),	� *)-// *)+-, ,)/,* ,)0*� ,)*	/ 4�	 *)�*. *)	/* *)*.. *).		 *)+/. ,)�+	 ,)�.. ,)	,* ,),*+ ,)-*+ .)�,* �'�
5��('�6
����'�('��
/�* *),.. *)-	. ,)��0 ,)��0 ,)0+� ,)*-/ ,)..+ ,)+-� .)/+/ .)	�. .),�+ 4�, ,)/-- ,)0.	 ,)*,* ,).,� ,)+,* .)/.	 .)0-+ .),/� .)-0+ -)�.	 -)0/, �'�
5��('�6
����'�('��
��. ,).	* ,)+	. .)/*, .)0.� .)*+� .)-/+ -)�*	 -)�+* -)*		 -)-�/ +)�,* �22��'���'��
7��8)
�99'��
7��8
�- .)0*� .)*.0 .)-�� -)�0	 -)�.* -)*�0 -)..+ +)�	� +)0/0 +)*+0 +)--� #:
�6���2�
��28)
�5�
0)
 ��'����
/�+ -)�-. -)00� -)*.+ -)-0. +)/�� +)0.* +),*, +)+	, /�)�		 /�)**� /�)-,- ��
�'�
7�'��'��
����'�(8)
 ��'����
�
0� -)-+, +)/,0 +)	0- +).�/ /�)�/0 /�)0/0 /�),�� /�)+	/ //)�,+ //),�. //)+** �'�8
���3'���
7��8)
�2�(8
���3�8)
 ��'����'��
���3�80/ +).-, /�)�-� /�)0-� /�),+0 //)�/	 //)0	* //),-* /�)�0, /�)0+. /�).,+ /0)/*� �2�('����
7��8)
 ��'����'��
7��8
0� /�).,	 //)�-. //)	�� //).,� /�)//* /�)	.- /�)-*0 /0)�0- /0),0, /	)�	* /	)	,, 4��9(����;
	<
��(��6
��=���2���
>9�
�����	?
//
�����)
3�����
+
0<
&��@���
���A
���� �*�0���0
(2A
���A�
����
 
�
�A�
*��A
�������'(�
9
�A�
2��1��



 

Agricultural Burning Fee Schedule 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 
 
Agricultural Burn Permit Fee – ORCAA Rule 3.4(a)*  

 

Fee Minimum Fee Variable Fee 

Field Burning $37.50 for the first 10 acres $3.75 for each additional acre 

Spot Burning $37.50 for 10 acres or less None 

Pile Burning $80 for the first 80 tons $1.00 for each additional ton 

*These fees are exempt from Resolution 268. 



 

Asbestos and Demolition Fee Schedule 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 
Asbestos and Demolition Fees – ORCAA Rule 3.5(b) 

 
ASBESTOS PROJECT Notification Fee 

Single Family Residential $      4244 

10  259 linear feet or 48  159 square feet $    179190 

260  999 linear feet or 160  4,999 square feet $    387411 

1,000  9,999 linear feet or 5,000  49,999 square feet $    774822 

10,000+ linear feet or 50,000+ square feet $  15471645 

Annual Notification (limited to 260 linear feet or 160 square 
feet maximum) 

$    595633 

Emergency $      6063 

   plus notification fee 
 
 

 
DEMOLITION PROJECT Notification Fee 

Single Family Residents (AHERA Survey Required) $      4244 

Commercial Structure (AHERA Survey Required) $      7176 

Emergency Project $      6063 

plus notification fee 
 
 



 

Land Clearing Burning Fee Schedule 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 
 
 

Land Clearing Burning Permit Fee – ORCAA Rule 3.4(b) 
 

The Land Clearing Burn Permit fee shall be $119 127 for one acre or less. For greater than 

one acre, the fee will be $119 127 per acre cleared, rounded to the nearest full acre. 

 



Notice of Construction (NOC) Fee Schedule 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 

NOC Fees - ORCAA Rule 3.3(a) 
 Filing Fee 
+  Additional NOC Processing Fees 
+  Other Costs 

NOC Fee 

 
Filing Fee - ORCAA Rule 3.3(b) 

Complexity Fee 
+  Equipment Fee(s) (for each piece of equipment, unless they are identical per 3.3(b)(2) 

Filing Fee 
 

Complexity Fee 
Complexity Level 1 $ 12031279 

Complexity Level 21 $ 24082560 

Complexity Level 31 $ 40274281 

Complexity Level 41 $ 974410358 

 
Equipment Fee 

Equipment/Activity Fee Base-Fee Hours 

Abrasive Blasting $     462491 5 

Asphalt Plant   $   34243639 37 

Combustion Equipment not otherwise listed (Million Btu/hr heat input at design capacity) 

    Less than 10  $   11101180 12 

    10 or more but less than 30 $   12031279 13 

    30 or more but less than 100 $   24052557 26 

    More than 100  $   64786886 70 

    Temporary Combustion Equipment (Onsite < 1 year) 
One half the filing 

fee  
One half the base-

fee hours 

Coffee Roaster $     647688 7 

Composting Operation (Average material throughput – 
tons per day)   

    Less than 50 $   12031279 13 

    50 or more but less than 200 $   21282262 23 

    More than 200 $   31463345 34 

Concrete Batch Plant $   18511967 20 

Crematory $     10181082 11 

Dry Cleaner (per machine) $     647688 7 

Dry Kilns $   12031279 13 

Emergency Engine – cumulative horsepower < 2000 bhp $     832885 9 

Emergency Engine -cumulative horsepower > 2000 bhp $   16651770 18 

Non-Emergency Engine (per engine) $   12031279 13 

Gasoline Dispensing Station $     647688 7 

Log yard $     647688 7 



Printing $     647688 7 

Process Equipment <20,000 cubic feet per minute at 
design capacity $     984926 10 

Rock Crushing Plant – includes General Order $     462491 5 

Soil Remediation $   12031279 13 

Spray Painting – Autobody (per operation/booth) $     740786 8 

Surface Coating – Aviation, Wood, Truck Bed Lining, Boat, 
Other (per operation/booth) $   12961378 14 

Storage Tanks <10,000-gallon total capacity (other than 
at retail gasoline dispensing stations) $     832885 9 

Wastewater Treatment Plant $   19432065 21 

Welding $     926984 10 

Other Equipment not listed above - Small2 $     462491 5 

Other Equipment not listed above - Medium2 $   12961377 14 

Other Equipment not listed above - Large2 $   31463345 34 

Equipment Modification - Modification as defined in 
ORCAA Rule 1.43 are physical changes or changes in the 
method of operation that may cause an emissions 
increase 

One half the 
applicable 

Applicable filing fee 
except that 

Complexity Fee is 
divided by two   

One half the 
associated 

baseBase-fee 
hours based on 

associated 
equipment fee(s) 

In-Kind Replacements – Rreplacement of equipment with 
a unit of same or smaller size and, combusting the same 
or cleaner fuel (if applicable). This fee reduction does not 
apply to except for asphalt plants, combustion equipment 
>30 MMBtu/hr, and or other replacements at the 
discretion of as determined by the Executive Director. 

One half the 
applicable filing fee 

One half the 
associated base-

fee hours 

 

Control Device Replacement/Change in Conditions (No Complexity Fee) 

Equipment/Activity Fee Base-Fee Hours 

Control Device Replacement per ORCAA Rule 6.1.10 NOC $   740786 8 

Change in Conditions per ORCAA Rule 6.1.114 NOC $  688 7 

 

Change in Conditions Per Rule 6.1.114 (No Complexity Fee) 

Equipment/Activity Fee Base-Fee Hours 

Change in Conditions  $   647 7 

 

Additional NOC Processing Fees - ORCAA Rule 3.3(c) 
Additional NOC Processing fees, including work that exceeds the base-fee hours, will be billed at the 
following hourly rate as specified in ORCAA Rule 3.3(d). 

Hourly Rate $  92.5398.36 

 

Other Costs - ORCAA Rule 3.3(d) 
Publishing and consulting costs incurred will be billed to the applicant as specified in ORCAA Rule 3.3(d). 

 

Variance - per ORCAA Rule 2.3, Compliance Schedule per ORCAA Rule 2.6(f), or 
Voluntary Limit per Rule 6.1.12Restricting the Potential to Emit per ORCAA Rule 



5.3 (SMO) 

Fees Fee Base-Fee Hours 

Filing Fee $   12961377 14 

Add’l processing costs above allowed hours – per hour $  92.5398.36  

Actual legal notice fees Actual cost  

Actual ORCAA legal fees  Actual cost  

 
1Complexity – Level 1, Level 2, Level 3 and Level 4 
The following includes equipment that would be considered in each permit complexity class if installed 
by themselves. If the application includes more than one piece of equipment/process or if your 
equipment/process is not listed, please contact ORCAA Engineering Department for a complexity 
determination for your project. 
 
Level 1 
Abrasive Blasting 
Coffee Roaster 
Dry Cleaner 
Emergency Engine <2000bhp 
Gasoline Dispensing Facilities 
Rock Crushing Plant 
Spray Painting – Autobody 
Storage Tanks <10,000-gallon capacity - 
excluding gasoline dispensing facilities 
 
Level 2 
Combustion Equipment <30 MMBtu/hr 
Compost <50 ton/day 
Cremator 
Emergency Engine >2000bhp 
Non-Emergency Engine 
Process Equipment 
Soil Remediation 
Surface Coating (excluding autobody) 
Welding 

Level 3 
Combustion Equipment 30-100 MMBtu/hr 
Compost 50-200 tons/day 
 
 
Level 4 
Asphalt Plant 
Combustion Equipment >100 MMBtu/hr 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2Equipment fees for other equipment not classified above is determined based on the size and the type 
of the unit. Please contact ORCAA Engineering Department for assistance.  
 
3Per Rule 1.4, a “Modification” means any physical change in, or change in method of operation of, a 

stationary source that increases the amount of any air contaminant emitted by such stationary source or 

that result in the emissions of any air contaminant not previously emitted. 

4Changes in Conditions that will result in an emissions increase are reviewed as a “modification” 

 



 

 

 
Notice of Intent (NOI) Fee Schedule 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 
 

NOI Fees - ORCAA Rule 3.6(a) 
Category Fee 

Asphalt Plant $   36603892 

Boiler $   10711138 

Concrete Batch Plants $     701745 

Nonroad Engines $     9781040 

Rock Crushers $  1256 1335  

Other Equipment Not Classified Above  $    10001064 

 
 

NOI Fees - ORCAA Rule 3.6(a) – Exemption under ORCAA Rule 6.4(a)(2) 
Stationary source qualifying for exemption from New Source Review under 
ORCAA Rule 6.1(b)(2)  $     555590 

Additional processing costs exceeding 6 hours for sources submitting an NOI for 
exemption under ORCAA Rule 6.1(b)(2) who request assistance with 
documenting the stationary source’s potential to emit 

$ 
92.5398.36/hr 

 
 

NOI Fees - ORCAA Rule 3.6(a) – Exemption under ORCAA Rule 6.4(a)(3) 
Gasoline Dispensing Facilities qualifying for exemption from New Source Review 
under ORCAA Rule 6.1(b)(3)  $    277295 

 



Olympic Region Clean Air Agency Fee Schedules 

Effective July 1, 20222023 
 

Registration Fee Schedule 
 

 

Registration Fee  ORCAA Rule 3.1 (b) 
Registration Class (RC) Registration Class Fee Amount Emission Fee 

RC1 $  19342056 $  60 63 per ton 

RC2 $  17261835 $  60 63 per ton 

RC3 $  15471645 $  60 63 per ton 

RC4 $    714759 N/A 

RC5 $    286304 N/A 

 

 

Reinspection fee ORCAA Rule 3.1(i) 
 

Reinspection fee     $119 127 per inspection 



0.924

population per capita

CLALLAM COUNTY

unincorporated 45,850 $42,365.40

Forks 3,360 $3,104.64

Port Angeles 20,200 $18,664.80

Sequim 8,215 $7,590.66

GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY

unincorporated 29,125 $26,911.50

Aberdeen 17,040 $15,744.96

Cosmopolis 1,665 $1,538.46

Elma 3,460 $3,197.04

Hoquiam 8,785 $8,117.34

McCleary 2,040 $1,884.96

Montesano 4,150 $3,834.60

Oakville 720 $665.28

Ocean Shores 7,160 $6,615.84

Westport 2,255 $2,083.62
 

JEFFERSON COUNTY

unincorporated 23,060 $21,307.44

Port Townsend 10,290 $9,507.96
 

MASON COUNTY  

unincorporated 55,770 $51,531.48

Shelton 10,430 $9,637.32
 

PACIFIC COUNTY  

unincorporated 15,960 $14,747.04

Ilwaco 1,100 $1,016.40

Long Beach 1,715 $1,584.66

Raymond 3,090 $2,855.16

SouthBend 1,735 $1,603.14

THURSTON COUNTY

unincorporated 143,760 $132,834.24

Bucoda 610 $563.64

Lacey 58,180 $53,758.32

Olympia 56,370 $52,085.88

Rainier 2,510 $2,319.24

Tenino 2,030 $1,875.72

Tumwater 26,360 $24,356.64

Yelm 10,680 $9,868.32

TOTALS 577,675 $533,771.70

Assessments for Fiscal Year 2024

based on 2022 population









Inspections Completed
Between 5/5/2023 and 6/9/2023

Insp. Date Source NameFile #Inspection Type Location Warning NOV Issued

BTD
05/08/2023 SETINA MFG CO - YELM HWY1254Driveby OLYMPIA

05/10/2023 ADVANCED PREFINISH786Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

05/10/2023 VILLAGE MART890Partial Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

05/10/2023 VILLA GROVE MARKET & GAS351Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

05/10/2023 TENINO COLLISION CENTER289Full Compliance Evaluation TENINO

05/10/2023 BROGAN AUTO REPAIR950Full Compliance Evaluation RAINIER

05/10/2023 RAINIER GROCERY & PIZZA MART408Full Compliance Evaluation RAINIER

05/10/2023 RAINIER FOOD MART577Full Compliance Evaluation RAINIER

05/10/2023 CITY OF YELM - WWTP186Full Compliance Evaluation YELM

05/12/2023 TOP-WRIGHT RUNSTAD297Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

05/18/2023 J & J EXTREME AUTOBODY INC706Full Compliance Evaluation MONTESANO

05/18/2023 CHEEMA MARKET AND SINGHS PIZZA990Full Compliance Evaluation McCLEARY

05/18/2023 ELMA CHEVRON974Full Compliance Evaluation ELMA

05/18/2023 GRAYS HARBOR COUNTY - MONTESA621Full Compliance Evaluation MONTESANO

05/18/2023 HOQUIAM BULK PLANT127Full Compliance Evaluation HOQUIAM

05/18/2023 REG GRAYS HARBOR LLC1236Full Compliance Evaluation HOQUIAM

05/18/2023 WSDOT - TEF 348 ELMA1196Full Compliance Evaluation ELMA

05/25/2023 MCCLEARY SHELL1229Full Compliance Evaluation McCLEARY

05/30/2023 HOLROYD CO INC - NISQUALLY754Driveby LACEY

06/02/2023 YELM READY MIX986Full Compliance Evaluation YELM

MS
05/09/2023 WSDOT - TEF 437 NASELLE208Full Compliance Evaluation NASELLE

05/09/2023 PENINSULA SANITATION SERVICE IN1010Full Compliance Evaluation ILWACO

05/18/2023 REG GRAYS HARBOR LLC1236Full Compliance Evaluation HOQUIAM

Page 1 of 4Printed 6/9/2023 11:14:53 AM

1



Insp. Date Source NameFile #Inspection Type Location Warning NOV Issued

NWS
05/19/2023 RAVENS BREW COFFEE INC239Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

05/23/2023 OLYMPIC MOUNTAIN MILLWORKS301Full Compliance Evaluation SHELTON

05/23/2023 CONCRETE RECYCLERS INC846Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

05/23/2023 BRADY TRUCKING701Driveby SHELTON

05/23/2023 APEX COLLISION SERVICES INC181Full Compliance Evaluation SHELTON

05/23/2023 SUNLIGHT WOODENWORKS1188Full Compliance Evaluation SHELTON

06/01/2023 CALIBER COLLISION OLYMPIA1061Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

06/01/2023 RT LONDON CO517Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

06/02/2023 A R JORGENSEN CONSTRUCTION774Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

06/02/2023 WASHINGTON STATE HEALTH CARE 477Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

RDW
05/05/2023 CUSTOM FIBERGLASS409Full Compliance Evaluation ABERDEEN

05/05/2023 GATEWAY 76 #850199Full Compliance Evaluation ELMA

05/05/2023 OLYMPIC CHEVRON882Full Compliance Evaluation ABERDEEN

05/05/2023 BERGSTROM FOUNDRY716Full Compliance Evaluation ABERDEEN

05/05/2023 BP #7145 ARCO ABERDEEN841Full Compliance Evaluation ABERDEEN

05/09/2023 NORTHWEST PIPELINE LLC-TUMWAT737Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

05/09/2023 PKMM INC410Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

05/09/2023 SETINA MFG CO - YELM HWY1254Investigation OLYMPIA

05/09/2023 LACEY FUEL871Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

05/12/2023 INTERIOR WOOD PRODUCTS1063Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

05/12/2023 FOUR STAR ACCESSORY OVERHAUL722Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

05/12/2023 SOUTHEND AUTOBODY AND RESTOR290Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

05/15/2023 MASTER BODY WORKS635Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

05/15/2023 1ST STREET MARKET AND DELI883Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

05/15/2023 RUDDELL AUTO527Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

05/15/2023 ANCIENT AUTO WORKS INC139Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

Page 2 of 4Printed 6/9/2023 11:14:53 AM

2



Insp. Date Source NameFile #Inspection Type Location Warning NOV Issued

05/15/2023 TYLER & GUY AUTO BODY REPAIR769Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

05/15/2023 FIRST RACE CAR WASH909Investigation PORT ANGELES

05/23/2023 LACEY SHELL FOOD MART802Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

05/23/2023 INTERCITY TRANSIT-PATTISON BASE306Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

05/25/2023 DASHMESH PETROLEUM 13 - PORT AN954Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

05/25/2023 JOYCE GENERAL STORE663Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

05/25/2023 MOBIL899Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

05/25/2023 PLEASANT HARBOR MARINA790Full Compliance Evaluation BRINNON

05/25/2023 ANGELES CONCRETE PRODUCTS521Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

05/25/2023 R CORNER GROCERY1079Full Compliance Evaluation PORT ANGELES

05/26/2023 ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 1003Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

05/26/2023 ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 1004Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

05/26/2023 DESCHUTES AGGREGATE & RECYCLI328Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

05/26/2023 OLYMPIC IRON WORKS LLC307Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

06/01/2023 BERINGER FAMILY INC977Full Compliance Evaluation BRINNON

06/01/2023 CAPE GEORGE MARINE WORKS INC366Full Compliance Evaluation PORT TOWNSEND

06/01/2023 ENCLUME DESIGN PRODUCTS1184Full Compliance Evaluation PORT HADLOCK

06/01/2023 FOODMART 3650 - HADLOCK928Full Compliance Evaluation HADLOCK

06/01/2023 HAVEN BOATWORKS LLC0Full Compliance Evaluation PORT TOWNSEND

06/01/2023 HOOD CANAL OUTFITTERS INC1080Full Compliance Evaluation HOODSPORT

06/01/2023 PORT TOWNSEND FOUNDRY476Full Compliance Evaluation PORT TOWNSEND

06/01/2023 RENAISSANCE AUTO DESIGN246Full Compliance Evaluation PORT TOWNSEND

06/01/2023 ROGERS PAINT GROUP LLC407Full Compliance Evaluation PORT TOWNSEND

06/01/2023 SEA BREEZE SHELL961Full Compliance Evaluation PORT TOWNSEND

06/01/2023 QUILCENE VILLAGE STORE206Full Compliance Evaluation QUILCENE

06/05/2023 EARTH FRIENDLY PRODUCTS215Full Compliance Evaluation LACEY

06/05/2023 EMBER GOODS329Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

06/05/2023 BLACK LAKE RESOURCES LLC - G.O. P784Full Compliance Evaluation PORTABLE

Page 3 of 4Printed 6/9/2023 11:14:53 AM

3



Insp. Date Source NameFile #Inspection Type Location Warning NOV Issued

06/05/2023 TUMWATER CARDLOCK454Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

06/05/2023 TUMWATER MOTTMAN836Full Compliance Evaluation TUMWATER

06/05/2023 TUMWATER OLD HWY 991094Full Compliance Evaluation OLYMPIA

Page 4 of 4Printed 6/9/2023 11:14:53 AM

4



Asbestos Permit Status Report

Permit # Site Address County Completion DateRec'd

22ASB008003 50350 Hwy 112 7/7/2023Clallam6/20/2022

22ASB008068 	422 East Bay Dr NE 9/6/2023Thurston8/24/2022

22ASB008162 Washington St, Rice St, and mile m 8/31/2023Clallam11/17/2022

22ASB008168 101 E Railroad 1/31/2023Clallam11/23/2022

22ASB008169 101 E Market St 12/30/2022Grays Harbor11/23/2022

22ASB008185 Annual 12/31/202312/12/2022

22ASB008187 1835 Circle Loop SE 1/12/2024Thurston12/13/2022

22ASB008188 Annual 12/30/2023Clallam12/13/2022

22ASB008205 	7219 Glen Annie Ln SW 1/11/2023Thurston12/30/2022

23ASB008207 Annual 12/29/2023Jefferson1/3/2023

23ASB008208 100 Mill Rd 12/29/2023Jefferson1/3/2023

23ASB008216 1113 Legion Way SE 2/28/2023Thurston1/11/2023

23ASB008219 	Communication Tower-Tonquin Ave 1/30/2023Grays Harbor1/13/2023

23ASB008241 	1507 Center St 2/4/2023Mason2/1/2023

23ASB008248 101 NE Byerly Rd 12/31/2023Mason2/6/2023

23ASB008258 2033 1st Street 12/31/2023Grays Harbor2/13/2023

23ASB008261 	700 Israel Rd SW 6/30/2023Thurston2/16/2023

23ASB008267 215 Sid Snyder Ave SW 3/17/2023Thurston2/17/2023

23ASB008270 31402 H St 12/31/2023Pacific2/13/2023

23ASB008278 1322 Washington Street 5/27/2023Jefferson2/27/2023

23ASB008290 216 North G St. 5/31/2023Grays Harbor3/7/2023

23ASB008298 5201 Capitol Blvd S 4/7/2023Thurston3/14/2023

23ASB008331 3002 Mt Angeles Rd 5/9/2023Clallam4/7/2023

23ASB008335 1678 SR 105 8/31/2023Grays Harbor4/11/2023

23ASB008349 526 Pattison St SE 5/31/2023Thurston4/24/2023

23ASB008357 3 Evergreen Lane 9/30/2023Grays Harbor5/2/2023

23ASB008359 522 East 1st St 5/17/2023Clallam5/4/2023

23ASB008360 100 W Broadway Avenue 12/29/2023Grays Harbor5/4/2023

23ASB008362 16921 East State Route 106 5/30/2023Mason5/8/2023

23ASB008367 703 Jackson Heights Dr 5/31/2023Grays Harbor5/11/2023

23ASB008369 306 E 3rd St 6/16/2023Grays Harbor5/12/2023

23ASB008372 314 Spruce St 6/7/2023Grays Harbor5/15/2023

23ASB008374 1650 Circle Lane 8/31/2023Thurston5/16/2023

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 1 of 2

5



Permit # Site Address County Completion DateRec'd

23ASB008375 182 N Ridge View Dr 7/19/2023Clallam5/16/2023

23ASB008376 73 Abbott Rd 6/30/2023Clallam5/18/2023

23ASB008377 723 Dawley Road 6/13/2023Clallam5/18/2023

23ASB008378 Protection Island NWR 6/13/2023Jefferson5/18/2023

23ASB008379 5501 Sandridge Rd 5/31/2023Pacific5/18/2023

23ASB008382 1501 Northeast Old Belfair Highway 5/25/2023Mason5/22/2023

23ASB008383 4318 Glen Terra Drive SE 6/16/2023Thurston5/23/2023

23ASB008384 46.461569, -123.923696 6/21/2023Pacific5/23/2023

23ASB008385 7841 Kerbaugh Rd NE 6/17/2023Thurston5/23/2023

23ASB008386 1504 268th Place 7/8/2023Pacific5/24/2023

23ASB008387 110 SE Orca Lane 6/30/2023Mason5/25/2023

23ASB008388 834 Sheridan Street 10/1/2023Jefferson5/25/2023

23ASB008391 7838 195th Ave SW 6/30/2023Thurston5/26/2023

23ASB008392 2350 E 3rd Ave 6/10/2023Clallam5/26/2023

23ASB008393 940 Enterprise Dr Ne Unit B 6/22/2023Thurston5/31/2023

23ASB008395 621 South Washington Street 6/30/2023Clallam6/1/2023

23ASB008396 51 Comet Court 6/30/2023Clallam6/1/2023

23ASB008398 634 89th Ave SW 6/2/2023Thurston5/31/2023

23ASB008399 123 S 1st St 6/30/2023Grays Harbor6/1/2023

23ASB008400 1118 Arthur St Unit #2 & 4 6/23/2023Grays Harbor6/2/2023

23ASB008401 1011 W 1st St 6/16/2023Grays Harbor6/3/2023

23ASB008402 523 Block House Rd 6/22/2023Grays Harbor6/5/2023

23ASB008403 1910 Evergreen Parkway NW 9/29/2023Thurston6/5/2023

23ASB008404 8726 Littlerock Rd SW 7/29/2023Thurston6/5/2023

23ASB008406 220 Gehrke Road 6/18/2023Clallam6/5/2023

23ASB008407 501 Tyee Drive SW 6/23/2023Thurston

23ASB008408 17340 Sargent Rd SW Whispering 6/15/2023Thurston###################

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 2 of 2

6



Demolition Notifications received between 5/5/2023 and 6/9/2023

Permit# Address City Status Asb Survey Asb Permit #Rec'd Staff

23DEM006739 100 W Pine St5/8/2023 Shelton ASBBTD

23DEM006740 11730 Scott Creek Dr5/9/2023 Olympia ASB

23DEM006741 17045 Linden Ct SE5/10/2023 Yelm ASB

23DEM006742 106 Williams Place5/10/2023 Sequim ASBBTD

23DEM006743 24 Viewpoint Ln5/10/2023 Amanda Park ASB

23DEM006744 26 Viewpoint Ln5/10/2023 Amanda Park ASB

23DEM006745 290 Oakshore Drive5/11/2023 Port Townsend ASB

23DEM006746 703 Jackson Heights filed in error. Cancel.5/11/2023 Forks 23ASB008367

23DEM006747 687 Taft St5/11/2023 Port Townsend ASB

23DEM006748 4034 2nd Ave NW ER req't - letter and fees rec'd.5/12/2023 Olympia ASBBTD

23DEM006749 290 E Lighthouse Rd ER req't - letter and fees rec'd5/12/2023 Shelton ASB

23DEM006750 324 Easterly Road5/15/2023 Sequim ASBNWS

23DEM006751 16921 E State Route 1065/15/2023 Belfair 23ASB008362

23DEM006752 7021 196th Ave SW5/16/2023 Rochester ASBBTD

23DEM006753 5843 193rd Ave SW5/17/2023 Rochester ASBBTD

23DEM006754 73 Abbott Rd5/18/2023 Port Angeles 23ASB008376BTD

23DEM006755 9130 Old Hwy 99 SE5/18/2023 Olympia ASBNWS

23DEM006756 170 Yarr Rd5/19/2023 Port Hadlock ASB

23DEM006757 27514 V Street lynda@strandinsurance.com5/22/2023 Ocean Park ASBBTD

23DEM006758 6504 Capitol Blvd SE ER req't - letter & fee rec'd5/23/2023 Tumwater ASBBTD

23DEM006759 1504 268th Place5/24/2023 Ocean Park 23ASB008386

23DEM006760 834 Sheridan Street5/25/2023 Port Townsend 23ASB008388

23DEM006761 834 Sheridan Street#################### Port Townsend ASB

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 1 of 2

7



Permit# Address City Status Asb Survey Asb Permit #Rec'd Staff

23DEM006762 834 Sheridan Street#################### Port Townsend ASB

23DEM006763 2704 Hazelwood Lane SE5/26/2023 Lacey ASB

23DEM006764 7838 195th Ave SW5/26/2023 Rochester 23ASB008391

23DEM006765 3128 Port Industrial Road5/26/2023 Hoquiam ASB

23DEM006766 2350 E 3rd Ave5/26/2023 Port Angeles 23ASB008392

23DEM006767 305 Willapa5/26/2023 South Bend ASBBTD

23DEM006768 407 Longmire Ave5/30/2023 Yelm ASB

23DEM006769 11714 Rivendale Lane SE ER Req't - No ER letter but fee rec'5/30/2023 Rainer ASBBTD

23DEM006770 1527 E 1st Street5/31/2023 Port Angeles ASBMS

23DEM006771 141 Blueberry Hill Rd6/1/2023 Port Ludlow ASB

23DEM006772 210 N Priest Rd NO payment.  Asb present? No noti6/5/2023 Sequim ASBRDW

23DEM006773 1307 5th Ave SE6/5/2023 Olympia ASBNWS

23DEM006774 17401 Heather Ln SE6/5/2023 Yelm ASB

23DEM006775 220 Gehrke Road6/5/2023 Port Angeles 23ASB008406MS

23DEM006776 501 Tyee Drive SW6/6/2023 Tumwater 23ASB008407

23DEM006777 563 West Kidd Road6/6/2023 Shelton ASB

23DEM006778 2710 Raintree Ct SE6/6/2023 Olympia ASBRDW

23DEM006779 16731 Hwy 507 SE6/7/2023 Yelm ASB

23DEM006780 8322 Steilacoom Road SE6/9/2023 Olympia ASB

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 2 of 2

8



Current ORCAA Land Clearing Burn Permits

Expiration # Burn Site Address CityFireDistrict

6/18/2023 5786 83 Lostwood Ln SequimCFD #3, Sequim

6/18/2023 5784 Corner Riverside & Timberside Rds Sequim

6/17/2023 5783 Lot 5, Black Bear Trail Port AngelesClallam County Fire District #2

6/21/2023 5787 621 Monroe Rd Port Angeles

6/29/2023 5791 	4744 State Route 109 MoclipsGHFD #8, Pacific Beach

6/22/2023 5789 Parcel 10091005072 NasellePFD #4, Naselle

6/15/2023 5780 Parcel#14093214014 South BendPFD #8

6/14/2023 5779 3001 85th Ave SW OlympiaTFD #11, Littlerock

6/17/2023 5781 3606 Blumauer Rd SE TeninoTFD #12, Tenino

6/9/2023 5778 5205 69th Ave SW OlympiaTFD #5, Black Lake

6/21/2023 5788 10330 Tilley Road S OlympiaTFD #6, East Olympia

6/25/2023 5785 5439 Lemon Rd NE OlympiaTFD #8, South Bay

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 1 of 1

9



Complaint Report for period from 5/5/2023 to 6/9/2023

Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

County:

05/18/2023 Unknown JW

06/01/2023 LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES - 
Tumwater

JW

06/08/2023 unknown Wilcox Ranch Black 
River Ranch

Gate RTM

06/08/2023 JW

06/08/2023 Unknown Nordland Eccessive DustJW

ClallamCounty:

05/08/2023 Unknown PORT 
ANGELES

TDF

05/09/2023 City of Sequim Ty Brown Sequim RTM

05/14/2023 HUNTER AND LESLY BURROWS PORT 
ANGELES

JW

05/16/2023 Hunter and Lesly Burrows Port Angeles RDW

05/24/2023 	WILLIAM D YORK Sequim JW

05/30/2023 tbd Sequim RTM

Grays HarborCounty:

05/12/2023 OCEAN PROTEIN LLC HOQUIAM JW

05/12/2023 Katie Hood Montesano NWS

05/17/2023 Edward Glassman McCleary MS

05/18/2023 125 S West Blvd LLC ABERDEEN MS

05/18/2023 Charlie Rossley Moclips BTD

05/19/2023 Howard and Catherine Breckon Elma JW

05/20/2023 Shawn and Raina Bridges Cosmopolis MS

05/31/2023 	GONG TIANYI HOQUIAM TDF

06/02/2023 OCEAN PROTEIN LLC Src#337 HOQUIAM JW

06/05/2023 William Nelson Cosmopolis DAN

MasonCounty:

05/17/2023 Enoch Mease Shelton BTD

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 1 of 5

10



Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

06/02/2023 Unknown Shelton JW

06/02/2023 Unknown Shelton JW

PacificCounty:

05/09/2023 Judy Pergrim / Judie's Beauties 
LLC

Raymond TDF

05/10/2023 Josh O'Neil Ilwaco MS

05/13/2023 Mike and Carole Patterson Ilwaco JW

05/17/2023 Mike and Carole Patterson Ilwaco MS

05/17/2023 PENTTILA CHAPEL BY THE SEA LONG BEACH Not using their 
crematory unit 
for the right stuff

MS

05/20/2023 Sheryl Craig Raymond MS

05/23/2023 Toxic Brush Burning Ocean Park MS

05/23/2023 Aimee Breon Ocean Park JW

05/24/2023 Michelle Garvin Ocean Park MS

05/24/2023 Unknown Ocean Park JW

05/24/2023 Unknown Ocean Park JW

06/02/2023 Arthur Parent Long Beach MS

ThurstonCounty:

05/05/2023 CURTIS, DAVID & CHRISTINE Olympia RDW

05/05/2023 Joseph & Ann Panesko Lacey BTD

05/05/2023 TBD Olympia BTD

05/05/2023 Valerie Sweeney Olympia NWS

05/05/2023 ZHANG, SHAOFEN & EAGAN, 
JAMES M

Olympia NWS

05/07/2023 Unknown Yelm TDF

05/08/2023 CURTIS, DAVID & CHRISTINE Olympia RDW

05/08/2023 Jeff Roosa Olympia BTD

05/08/2023 REICHEL, LESTER R Yelm RDW

05/09/2023 WHITON, BYRON ROBERT Tumwater RTM

05/10/2023 ASHER TRUSTEE, ELIZABETH Olympia RDW

05/10/2023 Frankie & Nancy Maldonado Lacey RTM

05/10/2023 GREEN, MARK D Olympia RDW

05/10/2023 HAWTHORNE, JOHN C Olympia JW

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 2 of 5

11



Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

05/11/2023 Kevin & Linda Johnson Rainier BTD

05/11/2023 Thomas Budsberg Tenino BTD

05/11/2023 John Pemberton & Tina Ballestrino Lacey JW

05/12/2023 HPA Borrower 2016-2 LLC Olympia JW

05/12/2023 John Robison Olympia JW

05/12/2023 Trespassers Yelm BTD

05/12/2023 unk Yelm JW

05/12/2023 unattended burn off and on for 3 
days

Olympia NWS

05/12/2023 John Pemberton & Tina Ballestrino Lacey JW

05/14/2023 HUDSON, AARON & JEANETTE Olympia JW

05/15/2023 God's Rental Land Trust Olympia JW

05/15/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia JW

05/15/2023 Resident Lacey JW

05/15/2023 Unknown Lacey JW

05/15/2023 Unknown Rochester JW

05/15/2023 Thomas L Verellen Olympia JW

05/16/2023 BRANNON, CHRISTY LYNN Centralia RDW

05/16/2023 FRANSON, ERIC S Rochester Suspected 
Illegal Burn

RDW

05/16/2023 James Gile Olympia JW

05/16/2023 Unknown Olympia JW

05/16/2023 RAMOS-VAZQUEZ, MARIA 
YSABEL

Olympia RDW

05/18/2023 CLARK, KELSEY & TOBY & 
SCHMIDT, ARMIN E III

Olympia RDW

05/18/2023 CRUZ ASTACIO, KAYLA N Rochester RDW

05/19/2023 Resident at Robert Harvey property Olympia NWS

05/19/2023 WEBSTER, MICHAEL Lacey RDW

05/21/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia JW

05/21/2023 Juana Chavez Garcia Yelm JW

05/22/2023 Christine & Mark Mancillas Lacey JW

05/22/2023 CRUZ ASTACIO, KAYLA N Rochester RDW

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 3 of 5

12



Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

05/22/2023 JASON GENE FOSTER SPECIAL 
NEEDS TRUST

Centralia DJM

05/22/2023 Unknown Lacey wrote to 
complain about 
being reported

TDF

05/23/2023 COACH POST LLC Olympia JW

05/24/2023 Julie Nelson-Ray Olympia BTD

05/24/2023 Kathleen Taylor Olympia JW

05/25/2023 Christina Lamonte Lacey RTM

05/25/2023 CLARK, KELSEY & TOBY & 
SCHMIDT, ARMIN E III

Olympia JW

05/25/2023 unknown Olympia MS

05/25/2023 Rena Olsen Olympia JW

05/25/2023 Unknown Yelm JW

05/25/2023 Rena Olsen Olympia Stale air with 
ash odor

JW

05/26/2023 Linda D Cooper Olympia DJM

05/27/2023 Cindy Blain Olympia JW

05/27/2023 Cindy Blain Olympia JW

05/27/2023 Cindy Blain Olympia JW

05/29/2023 Donald and Renee Barnes Rainier Household trash 
burning

JW

05/29/2023 Milton & Carla Alexander Olympia JW

05/30/2023 CLARK, KELSEY & TOBY & 
SCHMIDT, ARMIN E III

Olympia RDW

05/30/2023 WEIGLE, JEFF L Yelm RDW

06/04/2023 Unknown Rochester JW

06/05/2023 Thu Thi Anh Tran Tumwater TDF

06/06/2023 CLARK, KELSEY & TOBY & 
SCHMIDT, ARMIN E III

Olympia RDW

06/06/2023 HERSCHLER, KENNETH E Rochester RDW

06/06/2023 Kathleen Taylor Olympia NWS

06/06/2023 Kenneth & Jennifer Stevenson Rochester concerns about 
a possible burn

RTM

06/06/2023 Unknown Rochester JW

06/06/2023 Mark & Susan Kramer Olympia JW

06/07/2023 HEELAN, G JOHN Olympia RDW

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 4 of 5

13



Date Source City Smoke Odor Open Fire OtherDust Wood-

stove

FormalRec'd Online Asbestos/

 Demo

Marijuana

06/07/2023 CAHILL, COLIN P & STEPHANIE Olympia JW

06/07/2023 Andre & Ruth Marie McMillan Lacey JW

06/07/2023 The Jungle/Martin Way Olympia JW

06/07/2023 The Jungle/Martin Way Olympia JW

06/07/2023 Jungle between Martin way and 
Pacific Ave.

Olympia PlasticRDW

06/07/2023 The Jungle/Martin Way Olympia JW

06/07/2023 Unknown Olympia JW

06/07/2023 RADER, DARRELL L Lacey JW

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 5 of 5

14



NOV Monthly Report
For the period 5/5/2023 to 6/9/2023

Name Regulation(s) NOV Issued Total DueNOV # County Date Paid

WESTPORT LLC4256 02/08/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/2023Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program -

Compliance

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

WESTPORT LLC4257 02/08/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/2023Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

WESTPORT LLC4258 02/08/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/2023Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program -

Compliance

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

WESTPORT LLC4259 02/08/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/2023Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program -

Compliance

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

WESTPORT LLC4260 02/08/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/2023Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

WESTPORT LLC4261 02/08/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/2023Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program -

Compliance

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

WESTPORT LLC4269 03/09/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/2023Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

WESTPORT LLC4280 03/30/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/2023Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

70A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

WESTPORT LLC4324 10/28/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/202370A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

WESTPORT LLC4325 10/28/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/202370A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program -

Compliance

WESTPORT LLC4326 10/28/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/202370A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

WESTPORT LLC4327 10/28/2022 $11,186.25GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/8/202370A.15.2260(9)(a

)

RCW operate AOP source 

in violation of permit

Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program -

Compliance

SHADOW MOUNTAIN 

GENERAL STORE

4374 12/02/2022 $1,000.00CLALLAM Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

15



Name Regulation(s) NOV Issued Total DueNOV # County Date Paid

BACKMAN & SUZANNE 

STOLL

4379 11/23/2022 $250.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

5/31/2023Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

Rule 6.2.5(c) Person must be in 

attendance of fire

BOULEVARD GAS & 

MINI MART

4389 01/05/2023 $3,500.00THURSTON 6/5/2023Rule 6.1.8 Conditions in Approval 

Orders Enforceable

FOX LUMBER CO4391 12/16/2023 $500.00GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 6.1.8 Conditions in Approval 

Orders Enforceable

GOLDINOV4403 02/01/2023 $1,500.00PACIFIC 6/3/2023Rule 6.3.10(a) Disposal of Asbestos

Rule 6.3.3(a)(2) asbestos emissions during 

collection, processing, etc

Rule 6.3.8(a) Asbestos Removal Prior to

Renovation/Demolition

Rule 6.3.9(b)(1) Asbestos Work Practices - 

Controlled Area

Rule 6.3.9(b)(10) Asbestos Work Practices - 

Disturbance

Rule 6.3.9(b)(3) Asbestos Work Practices - 

Wetting ACM

Rule 6.3.6(a) Asbestos Amendments

Rule 6.3.9(b)(6) asbestos handling

GOLDINOV4404 02/01/2023 $750.00PACIFIC 6/3/2023Rule 6.3.4(c) asbestos/demo Notification

Period

RAYMOND 101 QUICK 

STOP

4405 02/06/2023 $5,000.00PACIFIC Rule 6.1.8 Conditions in Approval 

Orders Enforceable

ZVIRZDYS4407 02/17/2023 $5,000.00THURSTON Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

Rule 6.2.8(b) Failure to comply with 

conditions of permit

Rule 6.2.5(c) Person must be in 

attendance of fire

SWEENEY4408 02/22/2023 $619.00THURSTON Rule 6.2.8(c)(4) Land clearing burn permit

DELAO4412 03/02/2023 $10,000.00Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

Rule 6.2.5(c) Person must be in 

attendance of fire

Rule 6.2.8(c)(4) Land clearing burn permit

GOLDINOV4413 03/24/2023 $2,500.00PACIFIC Rule 6.3.3(a)(2) asbestos emissions during 

collection, processing, etc

Rule 6.3.9(b)(10) Asbestos Work Practices - 

Disturbance

FARINACCI4416 05/15/2023Rule 6.2.3 Cities and UGA--No 

Residential or Land 

Clearing burning

QFC FUEL CENTER 

#126 - LACEY

4419 04/12/2023 $500.00THURSTON Rule 3.1(d) Failure to pay Annual 

Registration fees

WEYERHAEUSER NR 

RAYMOND 

LUMBERMILL

4420 05/31/2023PACIFIC Rule 5.1(d) Operating Permit Program - 

Compliance

SWEENEY4429 06/05/2023THURSTON Rule 6.2.5(e) Use of Burn Barrel

Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

16



Name Regulation(s) NOV Issued Total DueNOV # County Date Paid

& TINA BALLESTRINO4430 06/08/2023THURSTON Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

Rule 6.2.3 Cities and UGA--No 

Residential or Land 

Clearing burning

GLASSMAN4431 05/17/2023GRAYS 

HARBOR

Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

CASTRO4432 05/16/2023Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

Rule 6.2.5(c) Person must be in 

attendance of fire

Rule 6.2.8(c)(3) Land Clearing burn

MEASE4433 05/17/2023MASON Rule 6.2.3 Cities and UGA--No 

Residential or Land 

Clearing burning

GOLDINOV4434 05/23/2023PACIFIC Rule 6.3.4(a) asbestos/demo work without

notification/fee

Rule 6.3.3(a)(2) asbestos emissions during 

collection, processing, etc

Rule 6.3.9(b)(10) Asbestos Work Practices - 

Disturbance

BURROWS4436 05/31/2023CLALLAM Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

BURROWS4437 05/31/2023CLALLAM Rule 6.2.8(c)(3) Land Clearing burn

WEIDNER & MICHELLE 

L TALLEY

4438 06/08/2023JEFFERSON Rule 6.2.5(e) Use of Burn Barrel

Rule 6.2.5(a) Burning Prohibitives

Total: $342,839.00

17



Explanation of Compliance Reports

Common to all of these reports is the choice of “city” as the mailing address for the activity. 

Inspections Completed 

This report lists the initials * of the ORCAA inspector (or engineer), the date the inspection was 
achieved, the ORCAA file number, business name, and the nearest city for their location. 

RTM – Robert Moody, Compliance Manager 
MS – Mike Shults, Compliance Supervisor 
RDW – Robert Wyland, Air Quality Specialist II 
NWS – Nancy Wood Siglin, Air Quality Specialist II 
BTD – Bryson Downs, Air Quality Specialist I 
MVG – Mark Goodin, Engineering Manager 
JAD – Jennifer DeMay, Engineering Supervisor 
AM – Aaron Manley, Engineer II 
LEW – Lauren Whybrew, Engineer I 

The ‘Inspection Type” column is a record of how the inspection was accomplished, or the purpose of the 
inspection. 

• Full Compliance Evaluation is selected when a complete on on-site inspection was achieved.
This indicates there was a facility walk-through, equipment was checked, and records were
reviewed.

• Partial Compliance Evaluation is selected with an on- or off-site inspection was conducted that
was not comprehensive (i.e. records review only). Many partial inspections can add up to a full
inspection. This has been used more frequently since COVID.

• Investigation is an on- or off-site examination of a specific parameter or issue.

• Source Test is chosen when ORCAA is on-site to observe independent test companies as they
audit a buisiness’ emissions.

• Driveby is documentation that we have been to the business but did not enter the property.
This code is used for following up on complaints (when no action is necessary) or checking up on
businesses that have been problematic.

Asbestos Permit Status Report 

The “Rec’d” is the date the permit was received at ORCAA. 

The “Site address” and “County” is the where the project is to occur. 

The “Completion Date” is proposed by the applicant stating when the project should be completed. 

Demolition Notifications Report 

Similar to the asbestos report, however because these notifications are good for an entire year, the list 
is long. 

Additional headings, different from the Asbestos Report include: 
The “Staff” indicates which staff person  

18



The “Address” and “City” is the where the project is to occur. 

The “Status” includes comments from staff handling the notification. The comments allow any inspector 

to follow up on any permit. 

The “Asb Survey” is a checkbox indicating whether ORCAA received an asbestos survey prior to the 

demolition. 

The “Asb Permit #” coincides with an asbestos project in our system for the same address. 

Current ORCAA Land Clearing Burn Permit 

This report contains active permits. 

The “FireDistrict#” is the district in which the burn will take place. 

The “Expiration” is the final date the permit is valid. 

The “#” is the permit number assigned by ORCAA. 

“Burn Site Address” and “City” is the location of the burn. 

Complaint Report 

These are alleged violations of air quality regulations. Not all have been investigated on-site by an 
ORCAA inspector. 

The “Source” references the alleged polluter, whether a business or individual 

The “City” is the where the alleged violation occurred 

The “Formal” checkbox is used to denote when a Formal Complaint has been received from the 

complainant. A Formal Complaint is a form that documents what occurred and is signed by the 

complainant and notarized. It includes details such as time of day, date, health impacts, and 

authorization to release the complainants name during the investigation. 

The “Online” checkbox is used to document complaints that have been submitted via email. 

The check boxes for smoke, odor, open fire, dust, woodstove, asbestos/demo, marijuana, and other 
are used to characterize the nature of the complaint. 

NOV Monthly Report 

This is a list of Notices of Violation (NOV) that had action during the reporting period. Action items may 
include the issuance of the NOV, issuance of the penalty amount (by law we must wait at least 30 days 
from the issuance of an NOV to assess a penalty) or show a penalty has been paid. 

19



Industrial / Commercial Air Permits
Pending and Final Permits for period from 05/05/2023 to 06/09/2023

Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

LAKE QUINAULT 
CHEVRON

QUINAULT After the fact 
replacement/upgra
de of a Stage I 
vapor recovery 
system at an 
existing gas station.

4/21/2023Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOI 23NOI1593 5/11/2023final permit delivered

SAFEWAY - YELM 
#1619

YELM upgrade Satge I 
vapor recovery 
system at their 
existing gas station

5/1/2023Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOI 23NOI1595 5/11/2023final permit delivered

ALTA FOREST 
PRODUCTS

SHELTON install stain coater 
with preheating

3/14/2023Wood Products AMNOC 23NOC1587 3/31/2023draft pending source review

CHEVRON #90956-
TROSPER

TUMWATE
R

Replace existing 
gasoline storage 
tanks and 
associated vapor 
recovery system.

5/26/2023Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOI 23NOI1598 6/2/2023incomplete application - waiting 
on data response

CITY OF LACEY - 
MILBANKE

OLYMPIA Install a 755 BHP 
diesel-fired 
emergency engine. 
Expected emissions 
include PM, NOx, 
CO, TAP, VOC, HAP, 
and SO2.

8/3/2022Government LEWNOC 22NOC1572 4/13/2023on hold - per source

CITY OF SEQUIM 
WATER 
RECLAMATION 
FACILITY

SEQUIM install an 
emergency 
generator <2000 
bhp (after-the-fact)

5/3/2023Waste Water 
Treatment 
Plant

AMNOC 23NOC1588 5/31/2023incomplete application - waiting 
on data response

CROWN CORK & 
SEAL CO INC

OLYMPIA renew 15AOP1129 6/11/2020Manufacturing JADAOP 20AOP1446 2/3/2022draft in progress

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 1 of 3



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

CUSTOM 
FIBERGLASS

ABERDEEN 8/24/2020Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 20NOC1424 5/31/2023on hold - waiting on another 
agency

DENTCENTER LLC OLYMPIA after-the-fact paint 
booth

2/2/2023Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 23NOC1584 2/23/2023draft pending source review

GRAYS HARBOR 
COMMUNITY 
HOSPITAL

ABERDEEN after-the-fact 
approval for 
natural gas fired 
boiler and two 
emergency engines.

3/8/2023Medical Facility AMNOC 23NOC1589 4/14/2023completeness determination 
pending

GRAYS HARBOR 
ENERGY LLC

ELMA 4/13/2022Energy 
Production

MVGREV 22REV1558 12/29/2022draft in progress

INTERFOR US INC - 
PORT ANGELES 
DIVISION

PORT 
ANGELES

obtain an initial 
Title V Air 
Operating Permit

3/2/2022Wood Products LEWAOP 22AOP1556 12/2/2022draft in progress

McKINLEY PAPER 
COMPANY

PORT 
ANGELES

Adding a Powdered 
Activated Carbon 
injection system for 
additional mercury 
control on Boiler 
#11

12/13/2022Printing/Paper 
Products

MVGNOC 22NOC1581 6/9/2023draft pending source review

MOUNTAIN STONE 
AGGREGATE

TENINO Establish a new 
rock crushing plant

2/10/2021Sand and 
Gravel

LEWNOC 21NOC1478 3/19/2021draft pending source review

MOUNTAIN STONE 
AGGREGATE

TENINO Establish a new 
rock crushing plant

2/10/2021Sand and 
Gravel

LEWNOC 21NOC1478 3/19/2021waiting on SEPA

MURPHY COMPANY ELMA Establish 
enforceable limits 
to ensure potential 
to emit for VOC 
remains below Title 
V thresholds.

4/14/2021Wood Products LEWSMO 21SMO1496 5/24/2022draft pending internal review

PANELTECH HOQUIAM renew AOP 
11AOP864

4/2/2020Printing/Paper 
Products

JADAOP 20AOP1437 6/7/2023draft in progress

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 2 of 3



Facility_Name City Description Application 
Received

Facility 
Category

EngType NOC_No Date of Status 
Update

Status

PETERSENS 
AUTOMOTIVE

PORT 
ANGELES

install paint booth 7/9/2021Automotive 
Services

AMNOC 21NOC1506 11/3/2022on hold - waiting on another 
agency

SAFEWAY - YELM 
#1619

YELM Remove Stage II 
vapor recovery.

3/23/2023Gasoline 
Distribution

LEWNOC 23NOC1592 4/27/2023final pending final payment

SILVER SPRINGS 
ORGANICS LLC

RAINIER 5/30/2023Composting MVGNOI 23NOI1597 5/31/2023initial payment received, hand off 
to engineers

TAYLOR SHELLFISH 
FARMS

QUILCENE Install a 685 
horsepower 
emergency engine. 
Expected increases 
in emissions 
include NOx, PM, 
SO2,VOC, CO and 
TAP/HAP.

3/20/2023Food 
Processing

LEWNOC 23NOC1591 4/24/2023incomplete application - waiting 
on data response

WASHINGTON 
STATE HEALTH 
CARE AUTHORITY

OLYMPIA for after the fact 
emergency 
generator

8/24/2021Government AMNOC 21NOC1523 12/29/2022on hold - per source

WEYERHAEUSER 
NR RAYMOND 
LUMBERMILL

RAYMOND install two identical 
spray-dryer mold 
inhibitor systems to 
apply coatings to 
green lumber.

8/16/2021Wood Products AMNOC 21NOC1521 1/31/2022on hold - per source

WINDFALL 
ARCHITECTUAL 

TUMWATE
R

12/13/2022Wood Products AMNOC 22NOC1578 3/3/2023draft pending source review

Friday, June 9, 2023 Page 3 of 3



May 2023
Air Monitoring Report

Odelle Hadley, PhD

1



May 2023 Air Quality Summary – PM2.5

Aberdeen1 1.9 μg m-3 3.5 μg m-3 6.1 μg m-3 30

Cheeka Peak 0.5 μg m-3 2 μg m-3 4.7 μg m-3 31

Lacey2 1.9 μg m-3 3.1 μg m-3 4.7 μg m-3 9

Port Angeles3 2.8 μg m-3 4.7 μg m-3 7.7 μg m-3 28

Port Townsend 2.2 μg m-3 4 μg m-3 6.5 μg m-3 31

Shelton 1.2 μg m-3 3.9 μg m-3 7.6 μg m-3 31

Raymond4 2 μg m-3 3.4 μg m-3 5.3 μg m-3 30

2

Minimum
G
O
O
D

U
S
G

Maximum
Average M

O
D

U
H

VU
H

# of days in AQ category

1) Interrupted QC stuck neph in zero all day 
2) Several communication interruptions and two 
failed QCs caused most May data to be invalid

3) Instrument failure; even made the news
4) Power outage



May Ozone – Lacey, WA
8-hour rolling average

3

0

15

30

45

60

75

90

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

5/1/2023 0:00 5/7/2023 0:00 5/13/2023 0:00 5/19/2023 0:00 5/25/2023 0:00 5/31/2023 0:00

Am
bi

en
t T

em
p 

[F
]

O
zo

ne
 [P

PB
]

O3 O3_2B Amb Temp



Grays Harbor Saturation Study 
Daily averages, May 2023  

4

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

5/1/2023 5/6/2023 5/11/2023 5/16/2023 5/21/2023 5/26/2023 5/31/2023

PM
2.

5

neph Aberdeen Harbor HS ASD shop Hoquiam
Central Pk Elem Richard Lane, Elma WA McCleary TL Oakville TL
Westport Coast Wildwood Seabrook Quinault Merc



Other Monitoring News

• Passed 6-month equipment audit by Ecology at the Cheeka Peak Ncore
site

• Finalized the Quality Management Plan per new guidelines from EPA 
(updates due every 5 years)

• Participated in 2 meetings with Olympia Climate Risk and Vulnerability 
Assessment

• Participated in nation-wide ASCENT workshops (Zoom)
• EPA Region 10 quarterly monitoring call
• Replaced the air monitor in Port Angeles
• Performed monthly audit on BAM monitor (Federal Equivalence Method 

for PM2.5)  and quarterly nephelometer QC in Lacey
• Signed a contract with A-Action group to conduct Cheeka Peak site 

clean-up
– Work will begin on July 24th, 2023

• Conducted workshops for the annual Expanding Your Horizons program
5



Expanding Your Horizons

6



Contact

Odelle Hadley, Ph.D., Senior Monitoring Specialist
360-539-7610 x105

odelle.hadley@orcaa.org

https://www.orcaa.org

7



Agency Update & 
Financial Summary 

Page 1 of 4 

 

The Olympic Region Clean Air Agency (ORCAA) appreciates the need for responsible use of public 
resources. As a public agency, we plan carefully to ensure financial stability while protecting clean 
air in Clallam, Grays Harbor, Jefferson, Mason, Pacific, and Thurston Counties.  

Agency Highlights, Fiscal Year 2023 (July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023) 

During the current fiscal year, ORCAA staff reached several notable achievements while also 
addressing the ongoing work of the agency. This includes performing regularly scheduled 
inspections of registered sources, processing permit applications, providing air quality monitoring 
data, securing digital records and resources, and handling all administrative tasks keeping the agency 
running smoothly and efficiently .  

The agency hired its first website design team to craft a new website – all previous website designs 
were created in-house by existing 
staff. After a lengthy process of 
discovery, design, and 
implementation, a new website 
was launched during the third 
quarter of the fiscal year. The 
updated site features 
improvements including new air 
quality monitoring display tools, 
improved online forms, and 
form-data integration into the 
agency’s core database. This 
improves staff efficiency by 
eliminating the need to manually 
re-enter existing website data 
into the agency’s database. The 
site works well on desktop browsers, as well as mobile devices. It also features translation services 
in four languages (English, Spanish, Korean, and Hindi). Check it out at www.orcaa.org!  

ORCAA also revised regulations regarding recreational fires making the rules consistent throughout 
the jurisdiction, thus streamlining both education and enforcement efforts on that topic. This rule 
revision was achieved with the assistance of local jurisdictions – cities, fire agencies, and police 
departments. 



Agency Update & 
Financial Summary 

Page 2 of 4 

 

The air quality monitoring section continued to work with a grant received at the end of Fiscal Year 
2022 as part of the federal American Rescue Plan (ARP). This grant is funding the replacement of 
old air monitoring structures at the Cheeka Peak Observatory (CPO) in western Clallam County. 
Much of the work will be completed during Fiscal Year 2024. 

Throughout the year, ORCAA welcomed several new staff members to the team. The compliance 
section filled two open positions after existing staff members left for personal career advancement. 
The agency also brought on a Building and Grounds Maintenance Technician and created a new 
Records Clerk position to help ease a backlog of administrative work, including digitizing 55 years 
of agency records. 

Finally, ORCAA made its final payment on its office building loan – the mortgage has been paid in 
full! 

Fiscal Year 2024 (July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024) Proposed Budget 

ORCAA has a diverse revenue base, including grants from state and federal agencies, fee-based 
programs, assessments from local jurisdictions, and rental income. The FY2024 budget includes a 4 
percent salary adjustment for staff, along with a 6.3 percent fee increase. ORCAA expects total 
revenue of $2,957,026. The balanced budget will utilize $216,522 of contingency funding to match 
its expected expenses of $3,173,548.  

As a service-focused agency, payroll and benefits comprise the majority of the budget expenses (79 
percent). Non-payroll administrative work and direct operating tasks accounts for 18 percent of the 
budget, while maintenance and operation of the agency’s building covers 3 percent. 

Businesses, industries, institutions, and municipalities that cause – or have the potential to cause – 
air pollution, are required to annually register with the local air pollution control agency. More than 
680 facilities are registered with ORCAA. ORCAA also permits 11 major sources which require Air 
Operating Permits (AOPs) under Title V of the Federal Clean Air Act.  Facilities may be required to 
apply for Notice of Construction (NOC) permits prior to the construction, installation, replacement, 
or modification of air pollution sources, emissions units, or air pollution controls.  

The fees – including those associated with NOC permits and annual registration, as well as burn 
permits, and asbestos and demolition notifications  – account for 46 percent of the agency’s revenue.



Agency Update & 
Financial Summary 

Page 3 of 4 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Agency Update & 
Financial Summary 

Page 4 of 4 

 

Planned Agency Activity  Fiscal Year 2024 

With no mortgage payments to be made, ORCAA will invest more financial resources into the 
building throughout the year. This includes catching up on required maintenance such as siding 
replacement and painting, interior flooring replacements, and updating HVAC systems.  

The previously secured EPA-managed ARP grant will be spent in Fiscal Year 2024, with the 
physical work of updating the CPO facility. The work includes removing old structures which house 
the existing equipment, grading and leveling the site – and the access road to the site – and installing 
new weather-tight structures for the equipment that makes up the national core (NCore) air 
monitoring site and a national network site for Interagency Monitoring of Protected Visual 
Environments (IMPROVE). Also housed here are sensors for the Pacific Northwest Seismic 
Network and Pacific Northwest Geodetic Array, providing early warning for coastal earthquakes. 

ORCAA’s IT section continues to address cybersecurity concerns while maintaining a strong, 
reliable network. During FY2024, the systems administrator plans to continue to utilize cloud-based 
services where reasonable, while ensuring the agency’s network and online resources remain secure 
and reliable.  

In addition to network improvements, the agency plans to replace its aging core database. Agency 
personnel have been exploring options and working to refine the order and organizational system of 
a replacement database.  

As the agency celebrates its 55th Anniversary this year, there are plans to engage in a new Strategic 
Planning process to set the direction for the agency moving forward.   




	B1-June14-2023BoardAgenda
	B2a-DraftBoardMinutesMay10-2023
	B2b-ExpendituresDisbursements
	B3-FinalizeExecutiveDirectors2023-2025PerformanceMeasures
	B4-FY2024Budget
	B5-ComplianceManagerUpdate
	B6-EngineeringManagerUpdate
	B7-SeniorAirMonitoringSpecialistUpdate
	B8-CommunicaitonsManagerUpdate
	B9-FinancialServicesManagerUpdate



